MINUTES

WEBER COUNTY COMMISSION
Tuesday, January 9, 2018 - 10:00 a.m.
Commission Chambers, 2380 Washington Blvd., Ogden, Utah

In accordance with the requirements of Utah Code Annotated Section 52-4-203, the County Clerk records in the minutes the names of all persons who appear and speak at a County Commission meeting and the substance "in brief" of their comments. Such statements may include opinion or purported facts. The County does not verify the accuracy or truth of any statement but includes it as part of the record pursuant to State law.

WEBER COUNTY COMMISSIONERS: James H. "Jim" Harvey, James Ebert and Kerry W. Gibson.

OTHER STAFF PRESENT: Lynn Taylor, of the County Clerk/Auditor's Office; Courtlan Erickson, Deputy County Attorney; and Fátima Fernelius, of the Clerk/Auditor's Office, who took minutes.

- **A. WELCOME** Chair Harvey
- **B. INVOCATION** Christopher Crockett
- C. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE Bill Ross
- **D.** THOUGHT OF THE DAY Commissioner Gibson

E. PRESENTATIONS:

1. Presentation on #winninginweber.

Sasha Clark, with the Dicio Group, presented the #winninginweber initiative started by the Commission a few months ago and showed a video of the 2017 wrap-up highlighting some extremely successful areas in the community. They are averaging one video/week addressing how the general public and government is winning in Weber County.

2. PRESENTATION OF A CAREER ACHIEVEMENT AWARD TO CHIEF DEPUTY KEVIN BURTON.

County Sheriff Terry Thompson stated that Chief Deputy Kevin Burton, who will soon retire, is the type of person that gets things done and behind the scenes. He is grateful for the Chief's phenomenal work and stated that he is a shining example of the best they have to offer in his office. He read the achievements award that listed the Chief's long list of accomplishments and great leadership. Chief Burton said that he worked hard, that it had been a great career and the staff is amazing. Chair Harvey expressed his thanks.

F. CONSENT ITEMS:

- 1. Warrants #424453-424621 in the amount of \$1,970,980.33.
- 2. Purchase orders in the amount of \$265,302.77.
- 3. New beer licenses.

Commissioner Ebert moved to approve the consent items; Commissioner Gibson seconded. Commissioner Gibson – aye; Commissioner Ebert – aye; Chair Harvey

G. ACTION ITEMS:

1. FINAL READING OF AN ORDINANCE MODIFYING THE FEE SCHEDULE FOR PEERY'S EGYPTIAN THEATER - ORDINANCE 2018-1.

Kassi Bybee, Ogden Eccles Conference Center General Manager, noted that this item was presented last week and there had been no changes since then.

Commissioner Gibson moved to adopt Ordinance 2018-1 modifying Peery's Egyptian Theater's fee schedule; Commissioner Ebert seconded.

Commissioner Gibson – aye; Commissioner Ebert – aye; Chair Harvey

2. Ratify spending impact fees (\$34,402.50) and other county funds (\$10,000) for the Wolf CREEK DRIVE PATHWAY (WOLF CREEK EDEN).

Bill Ross, of County Operations, presented this ratification to more accurately reflect how the item was listed on last week's agenda.

Commissioner Gibson moved to ratify spending impact fees (\$34,402.50) and other county funds (\$10,000) for the Wolf Creek Drive Pathway (Wolf Creek Eden); Commissioner Ebert seconded. Commissioner Gibson – aye; Commissioner Ebert – aye; Chair Harvey

3. APPEAL OF AN ADMINISTRATIVE DECISION BY THE WESTERN WEBER PLANNING COMMISSION TO GRANT FINAL APPROVAL OF SUNSET EQUESTRIAN CLUSTER SUBDIVISION PHASE 1.

Steve Burton, of County Planning, noted that the Commission heard this item on 11/14/2017 and remanded it to the Western Weber Planning Commission (Planning Commission) for consideration of the revised preliminary plan based on the finding that the Planning Commission erred in its interpretation and application of applicable county ordinances, including lot size requirements. The Planning Commission heard this item again on 12/12/2017 and reviewed the revisions to the preliminary plan and unanimously recommended approval of the preliminary plan because they found that the revisions brought the project into compliance. They recommended final approval of the Sunset Equestrian Cluster Subdivision Phase 1.

An appeal was filed within 15 days of that decision claiming that final approval of the subject subdivision was granted without a true preliminary approval. Staff's response is that by granting approval of a revised preliminary plan, the Planning Commission gave preliminary approval. Because the County Commission remanded the preliminary plan to the Planning Commission based on these errors, the Planning Commission was only able to consider a revision based on those errors. The Planning Commission recommended approval of the revised preliminary plan because those errors were addressed.

Christopher Crockett, Deputy County Attorney, who had advised the Planning Commission in that meeting, stated that one of the requirements for this item is that there be a preliminary plan approval and this occurred on 9/12/2017. The appeal was timely filed and certain violations were alleged that included lot size requirements, development standards for lots adjacent to undeveloped parcels, and that certain clusters were not adequately surrounded by open space. The appeal clearly described the error under the county code 102-3-5 and State Code 17-27a-703(1). Before the plan even came before the County Commission there were legitimate errors in the original approval for the preliminary plan. Based on that, the Planning Division worked with the applicant in order to correct those errors and to have a revised plan submitted. That revised plan was taken before the County Commission and they determined that it would not be appropriate to evaluate the revised plan without giving a fair opportunity for the Planning Commission to evaluate those changes. The County Commission granted the appeal, reversed the September preliminary plan approval and remanded it to the Planning Commission for further action. Mr. Crockett quoted from the Notice of Decision that the decision was based on the finding that the Planning Commission erred in its interpretation/ application of applicable ordinances including lot size requirements stated in county code, and while subsequent proposed revisions may or may have not corrected those errors, the Planning Commission's decision in the appeal were based on the original application and they had not yet had the chance to make a decision based on proposed revisions. He noted his respect for the arguments brought forth by the appellant in the original appeal because if those had not been brought forth a subdivision application that did not comply with the ordinance would have gone forward.

Mr. Crockett was tasked with providing advice to the Planning Commission. When this appeal was heard, it was based on the errors that were alleged by the appellant, who identified the issues that the County Commission would hear. The County Commission responded based on those allegations. Mr. Crockett interpreted the order to mean that it was not being sent back to do a completely new/start-over process but rather to determine if the errors identified by the appellant had been addressed. During the Planning Commission meeting Mr. Crockett specifically advised the commissioners to limit the review to only revisions made to the preliminary plan in order to determine if those errors that caused the reversal were sufficiently addressed and that the revisions were brought into legal compliance. The County Commission is the body that determines if that order was interpreted correctly. A legal issue for consideration is to determine if the developer had actually obtained any vested rights under the law, which would require limitation on the scope of review that the Planning Commission could undertake. State code 17-27a-508(1)(ii) states that an applicant is entitled to approval of a land use application if the application conforms to the requirements of the county's land use regulations in effect when a complete application is submitted and all application fees have been paid.

In his research Mr. Crockett identified an additional facet to the vesting doctrine. It has been interpreted to mean that once approval is given to an application the application is deemed to fully comply with local ordinances. The rights deemed to have vested are no longer subject to review and cannot be taken away, except in limited circumstances. This case does not fit squarely with this facet of this doctrine (because of the appeal). Technically, there has been no final approval of the preliminary plan. The Planning Division reached out to the State's Property Ombudsman for an informal opinion and the response was that in order to determine whether vesting has actually occurred, one has to look at the factual circumstances of the case and should ask what were the mistakes raised in the first appeal, how those mistakes did not comply with subdivision code, and if the mistakes were considered material or minor revisions. The Ombudsman stated that if the mistakes are minor vesting is generally considered to continue. Mr. Crockett's opinion was that the mistakes were minor and revisions could satisfy the identified errors, and he determined that vesting occurred to some degree, but that degree was up for debate. His opinion is that the developer vested and it was not appropriate for the Planning Commission to go beyond what mistakes were alleged and identified. If no mistakes remain, statute requires that the application be approved. Mr. Crockett identified another legal principle which is analogous to the best doctrine and is instructive—the doctrine of waiver. The issue before the Commission is to determine whether any remaining mistakes that were alleged in the first appeal continue or whether they have been satisfied. Because he believes there was vesting, there was no reason to reopen other issues already determined to be in full code compliance. If there are no mistakes going forward, the County Commission's decision to approve the revised preliminary plan would constitute

Minutes Weber County Commission January 9, 2018 preliminary approval. Commissioner Ebert stated that the initial appeal was for a variety of issues, more specifically regarding lot size and it was remanded to the Planning Commission for review and, in conjunction with county planning and legal counsel, they felt that the lot size met the requirements. Mr. Crockett stated that the appellant is raising the issue that the Planning Commission only looked at the revisions, not the application as brand new and that preliminary approval did not occur and that it was inappropriate to approve the final. He reiterated that the question before the County Commission was to determine if the Planning Commission sufficiently addressed the mistakes identified and the reason it was sent back. If so, approval of the preliminary plan constitutes preliminary approval across the board. Commissioner Ebert said that the concept of law on appeal is to only review the information being sent on the appeal.

Greg Bell, of Taylor, stated that their appeal is based on the 12/12/2017 Planning Commission decision. They feel it was not a preliminary approval because the entire application was not reviewed but only small revisions to that proposal. The Planning Commission was given direction to only focus on the items specifically listed in the appeal letter and the last bullet point only mentioned the lot size requirements but there were many things pointed out at the appeal that were addressed but some were not during preliminary—mainly what it means to be adjacent to a developed parcel. He said that Commissioner Ebert had made a comment at the appeal that to assume that an undeveloped piece of property that is an 8th the size around the edges meets the adjacent part of the statute is an error and that he would like that to be addressed, but it was not addressed during the Planning Commission meeting and the planning commissioners were advised to exclude any discussion on bonus density because that was already approved, as well as the layout of the subdivision.

The appellants contend that the bonus density is directly tied to the correct application of the land use code. Mr. Bell said that the first bullet point in the appeal Decision Letter makes it clear when it states that the appeal is granted and the 9/12/2017 Planning Commission decision granting preliminary plan approval of this Subdivision is reversed. He said that it reversed the entire decision, and not only did it grant preliminary plan approval but also approved 180 building lots, 40 agricultural parcels, 50 open space common areas and 45.2% bonus density—based on meeting code intent. They feel that preliminary plan approval was incomplete/inaccurate upon reversal from the appeal authority, that vesting did not occur for the developer because the developer has yet to provide a plan that addresses all the errors identified by the appeal authority, specifically the lot sizes adjacent to parcels as well as those lots whose boundaries are formed by existing roads, and that the bonus density is not mutually exclusive and was directly tied to the compliant land use code. They proposed that the County Commission uphold the appeal reversing the granting of final approval, remand the decision to the Planning Commission to review the entire application, including the issuance of bonus densities, layout, and any other items that may need to be revised to bring the plan into compliance to applicable land use ordinance.

Rick Grover, County Planning Division Director, responded to Commissioner Ebert's questions that included the interpretation of smaller pieces of property as open space. Mr. Grover showed a map, tracing around the development that identified the different clusters in relationship to surrounding development. The Planning Commission had reviewed lot sizes, the standards for lots adjacent to vacant or undeveloped parcels, and the roads, and this met the intent of the code and so the preliminary subdivision was approved.

Doug Nosler, property owner/representing the owners, Kaysville resident, stated that this has been a challenge, that they have been working on it for over a year trying to conform with the regulations and maximize their benefit. They will not get what they planned financially but if they get cut back to the original intent, it would be financially detrimental. Commissioner Gibson asked about the comment "if we get cut back to the original intent" and Mr. Nosler said that the residents requested that they go to 1-acre minimums, assuming no bonus density would be allowed. Chris Haertel, applicant/property developer, stated that these items were originally brought up in the appeal and they complied with the concerns prior to the meeting with the county in November, and by technicality it was pushed back because they made mistakes, then addressed and readdressed them to meet the requirements and feel they have met the intent.

Mr. Burton addressed Commissioner Ebert's questions stating that this revision came before the County Commission during the appeal and County Planning's recommendation was to uphold the Planning Commission's decision based on this revised plat, which is what came before the County Commission during the appeal and is the plat that complies with all land use regulations. Commissioner Ebert noted that the interpretation from County Planning and the Planning Commission is that there are no mistakes. Specific to this appeal, he asked if there has been a mistake in the process that needs mitigating and Mr. Crockett had not identified a mistake in the process. He stated that it hinged on whether the County

Commission determined there was a mistake, if there was no mistake there is no legal reason to deny, that County Planning sees no mistake remaining and he has not been able to identify one sufficient enough to reopen the entire issue.

Commissioner Gibson said that the appellant brought up a statement attributed to Commissioner Ebert about being adjacent to other parcels and if that was specifically mentioned as something that needed to be looked at on appeal but was not at the Planning Commission. He asked if this would constitute a procedural issue. Mr. Crockett said that the Notice of Decision does not state the specific reasons for the remanding, but rather it was being remanded to address errors, "including (meaning there could be others) lot size requirements. Mr. Burton stated that when County Planning received the Notice of Decision after the original appeal was granted, there was nothing in that decision or motion that made County Planning ask the question to the Planning Commission—that the Planning Commission as well as the Planning Division inherently understood what that language was saying. The current Cluster Subdivision language defines what being adjacent to an undeveloped parcel means and it was brought up during that Planning Commission meeting. Commissioner Gibson can understand why they did not bring up items that seemed to have already been settled and he asked if the things that the County Commission asked to be revisited by the Planning Commission were appropriately done from the procedural standpoint. Mr. Burton said that they had, that the Cluster Subdivision ordinance requirements were met, that the Planning Division does not feel any procedural errors occurred and that the Planning Commission addressed the County Commission's concerns. The bonus density could not be approved until the other items were cleared up. Mr. Burton stated that the appellant had said that 10% bonus density was granted because the Planning Commission felt the subdivision met the purpose/intent, even though it did not initially see the error.

Courtlan Erickson, Deputy County Attorney, clarified that Mr. Crockett was representing the Planning Commission in the decision made there. Mr. Erickson's position was to be the independent legal advisor to the County Commission in this meeting. One of Commissioner Gibson's concerns was the appellant's statement that there were specific items mentioned by the County Commission that they wanted the Planning Commission to look at. One item was not looked at because the Planning Commission was advised not to. Mr. Erickson responded that when this item was brought back before the Planning Commission it had the revised plan and was faced with the decision whether or not to grant preliminary approval. The County Commission's previous motion and decision in the Notice of Decision was to reverse the decision that had been made, refer it back for additional discussion/action, and the Notice listed some findings, including the lot size requirement error. The Planning Commission had made an error in interpreting and applying the relevant ordinances and it was sent back. The Planning Commission minutes clearly state that the item was remanded to review if the plan put forward after the initial appeal met the criteria of the ordinance. Mr. Erickson's opinion is that if the Planning Commission did not address something mentioned in the course of discussion in the County Commission meeting it does not make this procedure defective. The Planning Commission looked at the application, and even if they did not address specific concerns that may have been discussed in the minutes, if the application met all the criteria of the ordinance, then the County Commission's job is to determine if they made a mistake in approving it.

Commissioner Gibson asked if the bonus density number would change if this went to the Planning Commission now and Mr. Grover said that the ordinance's purpose/intent talks about decreasing road sizes, clustering, etc., and it was met in the beginning of the development and meets it now, and while the open space is an interpretation call, the Planning Commission felt that it is meeting those items with the original September proposal and with the current. He noted that this was a difficult case; they had to respect the property owners' and the appellant's rights and the code. He said that the concern is the vesting but they feel it was there because the changes were minor and did not affect the road layout, etc., and they felt the 10% bonus density was met in both the original approval and with the small revisions. He said that the purpose and intent is somewhat vague but the Planning Commission looks at this, and the setbacks are clear. Planning staff is currently revising both the PRUD and the Cluster Subdivision ordinance.

Commissioner Ebert moved to uphold the Planning Commission's recommendation to deny the appeal of the administrative decision by the Western Weber Planning Commission to grant final approval of Sunset Equestrian Cluster Subdivision Phase 1 because it clearly states in the Planning Commission minutes that they based their motion upon review of the original plan and then changes made to meet statutory requirements; Commissioner Gibson seconded stating that it is based on legal counsel's advice regarding the discussion of whether the proposal meets the code at this time, and it does.

Commissioner Gibson – aye; Commissioner Ebert – aye; Chair Harvey

4. CONTRACT WITH BROKEN HEART RODEO TO HOLD THE INTERMOUNTAIN ICEBREAKER HIGH SCHOOL INVITATIONAL RODEO AT THE GOLDEN SPIKE EVENT CENTER (GESC).

Duncan Olsen, GSEC Division Director, presented this contract.

Commissioner Ebert moved to approve the contract with Broken Heart Rodeo for the Intermountain Icebreaker High School Invitational Rodeo at the GSEC; Commissioner Gibson seconded.

Commissioner Gibson – aye; Commissioner Ebert – aye; Chair Harvey

5. CONTRACT AMENDMENTS WITH THE FOLLOWING FOR INDIGENT DEFENSE AND JUVENILE COURT ATTORNEYS:

ANDREW HEYWARD JONATHON PACE
AMMON NELSON MARY ANN ELLIS
CAROL MORTENSEN RICHARD WILLIAMS

JENNIFER CLARK

Bryan Baron, Deputy County Attorney, stated that Chair Harvey had worked very hard for over six months to find a long-term solution to provide coverage at detention hearings. The indigent defense attorney's submitted a counter proposal to the county's—they will each contribute \$100/month to have Ms. Ellis cover those hearings. Their contracts reflect that. He noted the two changes to Mr. Hayward's contract—he no longer has juvenile drug court and he will receive an additional \$935/year to correct last year's contract. Chair Harvey commended Mr. Baron on an awesome job. This solution is fiscally responsible.

Commissioner Gibson moved to approve contract amendments with the following for indigent defense and Juvenile Court attorneys as listed above; Commissioner Ebert seconded.

Commissioner Gibson – aye; Commissioner Ebert – aye; Chair Harvey

H. Public Comments:

Greg Bell, of Taylor, asked about the process to incorporate all of the western Weber County stating that there is a group interested in incorporating. Mr. Crockett will speak with Mr. Bell regarding incorporation. Mr. Bell thanked the Planning Commission and the Planning Division for their efforts to revise the Cluster Subdivision. They have reached out to him several times and good progress has been made on that code. He will attend tonight's Planning Commission meeting. He asked that the bonus density be reduced to a maximum of 30%, currently it is 50% and this only benefits large developments. This would help to maintain more agricultural parcels. Most of the time smaller developments receive less than 5% bonus density and without any agricultural preservation. Commissioner Gibson feels that there should be opportunities to drive positive behavior regarding bonus densities and would like Planning staff to consider lowering figures to be more representative of the lower and upper valleys wishes. Planning staff is currently having these discussions. Commissioner Ebert noted that the western Weber County could create a special district to provide some of the services and he encouraged public involvement.

Lori Brinkerhoff, of Hooper City council, stated that there was great discussion today on the Cluster Subdivision Ordinance, the clarification of bonus density, preservation of open space, etc., that will go forward. She appreciates the manner the county commissioners professionally addressed the issues, which need to be addressed so that they are clear, and that guidance needs to come from Weber County and not outside sources.

Commissioner Harvey commended Mr. Bell for his work and the civility by which he accomplished the work. The county will continue to work to improve.

ADJOURN

Commissioner Gibson moved to adjourn at 11:47 a.m Commissioner Gibson – aye; Commissioner Ebert– a		
	Attest:	
James H. "Jim" Harvey, Chair	Ricky D. Hatch, CPA	

Weber County Commission

Weber County Clerk/Auditor

AGREEMENT FOR INDIGENT DEFENSE ATTORNEY JUVENILE COURT

This Agreement is made effective the 1st day of January, 2018, by and between Weber County, a body politic of the State of Utah, hereinafter referred to as "County," and Andrew Heyward, hereinafter referred to as "Attorney." County and Attorney are sometimes referred to individually as "Party" and collectively as "Parties."

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, pursuant to Chapter 32 of Title 77, Utah Code Ann. (1953, as amended), County has the responsibility to provide legal counsel to every indigent person who faces the substantial probability of deprivation of his or her liberty; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Chapter 6 of Title 78A, Utah Code Ann. (1953, as amended) and other corresponding provisions and appellate court decisions, County has the obligation to provide legal counsel in abuse, neglect, and dependency proceedings; in termination of parental rights proceedings; and in delinquency and contempt proceedings; and

WHEREAS, Attorney is a member of the Utah State Bar Association in good standing and admitted to practice law before the courts of the State of Utah; and

WHEREAS, Attorney is willing to represent persons in the Second District Juvenile Court when appointed by the Court in accordance with paragraph one, two, and three below;

- 1. Delinquency Representation: Attorney agrees to provide competent legal counsel to any minor defendant where the court appoints the Attorney pursuant to Utah Code § 78A-6-1111(1)(e), and the minor defendant has been charged with a delinquent act be it felony, misdemeanor, status offense, or certification proceeding. Attorney shall represent such minor defendants in all matters before the court including but not limited to juvenile court probation violations hearings, order to show cause hearings, detention hearings, and restitution hearings.
- 2. <u>Child Welfare Representation:</u> Attorney agrees to represent and provide competent legal counsel to any parent or legal guardian where the following criteria have been met:
 - a. The parent or legal guardian is involved in an abuse, neglect, dependency, contempt, or termination of parental rights proceeding brought by the Utah Attorney General's Office for the Utah Division of Family Services pursuant to Utah Code § 78A-6-1111 et al;
 - b. The court has found that the parent or legal guardian is indigent pursuant to the statutory indigency guidelines; and

- c. The court has appointed the Attorney to represent the parent or legal guardian.
- 3. <u>Private Termination Representation:</u> Attorney agrees to represent and provide competent legal counsel to any parent where the following criteria have been met:
 - a. The parent is involved in a termination of parental rights proceeding that was brought by a private party;
 - b. The court has made a finding that failure to appoint counsel will result in a deprivation of due process;
 - c. The court has found that the parent is indigent pursuant to the statutory indigency guidelines; and
 - d. The court has appointed the Attorney to represent the parent.
- 4. In the event Attorney is appointed to represent a client as a result of the client's indigency, Attorney agrees to promptly notify the court of any changes with regard to the indigent status of client, which changes would affect the qualifying of the client for court-appointed counsel.
- 5. Attorney agrees to be supervised by an attorney who has been hired by County to act as the coordinating attorney ("Coordinating Attorney") and to accept assignments from said Coordinating Attorney to cover specific court calendars and other hearings as necessary.
- 6. Attorney will provide the Coordinating Attorney with caseload information on a monthly basis on a form approved by the Coordinating Attorney including information about the cases which have gone to trial.
- 7. Attorney will seek to identify potential conflicts or complaints that persons may have against Attorney and work diligently to avoid any complaints being lodged against Attorney. Attorney will immediately communicate to the Coordinating Attorney any complaints that may be lodged by anyone against Attorney and work diligently to resolve any such complaint.
- 8. Attorney will be responsible for scanning any paper files once they are closed and destroying the hard copy of the file. In the event that Attorney fails to scan closed paper files and destroy the hard copies, County may withhold the costs for doing so from Attorneys final paycheck. Attorney agrees to cooperate with Coordinating Attorney in transferring the digital copies of closed files to the Coordinating Attorney.
- 9. Attorney will assist Coordinating Attorney in the development of a list of court approved investigators and expert witnesses and make diligent efforts to utilize only those investigators and expert witnesses found on such list. If Attorney feels it necessary to utilize an expert witness or investigator who is not on the approved list, Attorney agrees to first consult with the Coordinating Attorney before making any such request of the Court.

- 10. Attorney shall submit to the Coordinating Attorney an electronic copy of each and every motion, memoranda, and appellate brief Attorney files. Attorney is not required to submit said copies prior to the respective due dates but shall submit copies to the Coordinating Attorney as soon thereafter as is practicable. Attorney will not be required to submit copies of client court reports, or any other such reports, unless requested by the Coordinating Attorney.
- 11. Attorney shall submit to the Coordinating Attorney an electronic copy of each request for transcripts, request for appointment of expert witness, or any other motion, request, or stipulation that will require payment by the County, and shall submit such copies simultaneously with the filing of the original documents with the Court. Attorney shall also work to ensure that such requests are necessary for case preparation.
- 12. If at any time Attorney's case load becomes sufficiently burdensome to create an ineffective assistance of counsel issue or could cause the attorney to be in violation of the Rules of Professional Conduct, Attorney shall immediately notify the Coordinating Attorney and determine a proper course of action to remedy the situation.
- 13. Attorney is expected to provide coverage for other contract attorneys when necessary and when Attorney is available to provide coverage. When possible, the attorneys should attempt to trade coverage at the time coverage is procured. When a simultaneous trade is not possible, the attorney whose calendar was covered should make reasonable efforts to reciprocate coverage for the attorney who covered for him/her upon request.
- 14. If the Coordinating Attorney determines that the attorney who provided coverage made reasonable efforts to procure coverage from the attorney for whom he/she provided coverage and the other attorney is unwilling or unable to provide coverage within six months of the original coverage having been provided, the covering attorney shall be compensated \$250 by the attorney who was covered. This amount shall be deducted from the paycheck of the attorney whose calendar was covered and added to the paycheck of the covering attorney.
- 15. When Attorney will miss his/her regular court assignment due to trial, vacation, seminar, etc., Attorney shall arrange with another contract attorney to cover Attorney's court. If Attorney fails to procure coverage and does not appear at Attorney's court assignment, the sum of \$600 shall be deducted from Attorney's pay and paid to the attorney[s] who provided coverage for Attorney (if any is provided). The arrangement for court coverage shall be coordinated with the Coordinating Attorney.
- 16. The term of this Agreement shall be from January 1, 2018 through December 31, 2019.
- 17. County agrees to pay Attorney the following amounts annually:

Basis for Amount	Amount
Child Welfare Representation	\$69,615

Child Welfare Drug Court	\$3,900
Total	\$73,515

Payment shall be made to the Attorney in equal monthly installments of \$6,126.25 per month. The first installment is due before the end of January 2018 and a like sum on the last day of each month thereafter through December 31, 2019.

County agrees to pay Attorney at the rate of \$100 per hour for services provided in Private Termination Cases pursuant to paragraph three above. Attorney agrees to submit invoices for payment to the Civil Division of the Weber County Attorney's Office no more than three months after the work detailed in the invoice was completed. County reserves the right to refuse payment for any work that was performed more than three months prior to the submission of the invoice.

- 18. Attorney's compensation is based on the number of years Attorney has practiced. County agrees to periodically increase the compensation to Attorney up to a maximum of 30 years.
- 19. Attorney agrees to maintain professional malpractice insurance with limits of \$100,000 per person and an aggregate of \$300,000 and provide to County evidence of the insurance. In addition, Attorney agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold County harmless from all damage, loss, or injury Attorney may suffer or be held liable for as a result of Attorney's conduct.
- 20. Attorney agrees to abide by the rules of Professional Conduct of the American Bar Association, the Utah State Bar Association, and the laws of the State of Utah, including but not necessarily limited to the provisions of Chapter 32 of Title 77, Utah Code Ann. (1953, as amended).
- 21. Attorney agrees to keep abreast of all current legal trends and to that end shall maintain sufficient continuing professional education credits during the period of this Agreement.
 - a. Attorney agrees to make reasonable efforts to attend at least 80% of the periodic public defender training/coordination meetings.
- 22. Throughout the term of this Agreement, Attorney agrees to maintain access to an office within Weber County where Attorney can meet with clients which Attorney serves under the terms of this Agreement. Attorney agrees to be available and accessible to clients reasonably in advance of any hearing or trial, to make reasonable efforts to visit clients who are incarcerated, to return telephone calls as soon as reasonably possible, and to otherwise be reasonably accessible to all clients.
- 23. Attorney agrees to use his/her best efforts to avoid any conflicts of interest which would divide loyalty of Attorney to the client. The Parties, however, recognize that certain

- cases may arise where conflicts are of sufficient magnitude that the Attorney cannot represent the person charged. Conflicts of interest shall only be deemed to exist after a determination of the appointing Court.
- 24. Attorney will represent various clients that would typically be assigned to other contract attorneys when the court deems there is a conflict of interest preventing the other contract attorney from representing the client. Any such representation shall be at no additional cost to County, with such assignments being made under the direction of the Coordinating Attorney.
- 25. Nothing in this agreement shall prohibit Attorney from representing private clients so long as the representation of private clients does not interfere with or create a conflict of interest in the representation of clients appointed under this Agreement.
- 26. Unless the fee is waived by the court based upon the client's financial condition, Attorney agrees to assist County in the continued implementation of a fee recovery program whereby Defendants receiving assistance of appointed counsel shall repay to County a portion of the expense thereof as a matter of restitution, based upon a schedule approved by the Weber County Commission.
- 27. This Agreement may not be assigned by Attorney. Attorney is an independent contractor and shall not act as an agent for County.
- 28. County has established an indigent expense fund and will continue to fund the expense fund for the term of this Agreement. The expense fund may be used by all attorneys representing indigent defendants in County. Appropriate expenses shall include, but shall not be limited to laboratory costs, transcripts, defense witness fees, and extraordinary investigator fees. Attorney will bear all other expenses in providing the services contemplated herein, including but not limited to, transportation, office, telephone, postage, copying, and secretarial costs. While ensuring that Attorney's client receives an adequate and reasonable defense, Attorney hereby agrees to use his/her best efforts to minimize the cost and expenses to be deducted from the fund.
- 29. Before any of the expense funds are expended, Attorney shall first consult with the Coordinating Attorney and then shall make application for approval of expenses in the form of a written motion to the trial judge and shall specify the reasons for the expense. Payment for any expense incurred by the Attorney and not previously approved by the Court, or in excess of that approved by the Court, shall be the sole responsibility of the Attorney. In the event the total court approved expenses exhaust the expense fund for the year, the Attorney shall apply in writing to the Weber County Clerk/Auditor for approval of additional funds.
- 30. Attorney or County may terminate this Agreement without cause upon sixty days written notice to the other Party.

- 31. This Agreement may be terminated at any time for cause. Cause shall include but not be limited to a suspension or revocation of Attorney's license to practice law in the State of Utah, a breach of this Agreement, or behavior which brings disrepute to other contract attorneys or to County.
- 32. In the case of a breach or violation of a term of this Agreement, Attorney shall be given seven calendar days to cure the breach or violation. Failure of the Attorney to cure the breach or violation within the specified period shall result in termination of this Agreement. In the event this Agreement is terminated, the Parties agree that County may award this contract to other legal counsel and deduct the costs from the compensation identified in Paragraph 17 of this Agreement.
- 33. Any notice required by this agreement shall be given in writing addressed to the following unless otherwise designated in writing.

FOR THE COUNTY:	FOR THE ATTORNEY:	
	Andrew Heyward	
Weber County Attorney	986 S. 200 E.	
2380 Washington Blvd., Suite 230	Layton, UT 84041	
Ogden, UT 84401		

- 34. In the event this Agreement is terminated or is not renewed, Attorney agrees to cooperate with his successor including the filing of all necessary pleadings for withdrawal and to deliver all applicable files, information, and materials to the successor.
- 35. This Agreement can be changed, modified, or amended only by written agreement of the Parties.
- 36. Attorney is an independent contractor and is responsible to pay any and all taxes and fees which may result from the compensation paid to Attorney pursuant to this Agreement.
- 37. This Agreement shall constitute the entire agreement between the Parties and any prior understanding or representation of any kind preceding the date of this Agreement shall not be binding upon either Party except to the extent incorporated in this Agreement.
- 38. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Utah.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the undersigned have affixed their respective signatures hereto the dates indicated below.

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
OF WEBER COUNTY

Jim Harvey, Chair

Commissioner Ebert voted
Commissioner Gibson voted
Commissioner Harvey voted

ATTEST:

Ricky Hatch, CPA
Weber County

ATTORNEY

INDIGENT DEFENSE COORDINATOR

By Andrew J Heyward
Andrew Heyward
Date 01/04/2018

Date 14/18

AGREEMENT FOR INDIGENT DEFENSE ATTORNEY JUVENILE COURT

This Agreement is made effective the 1st day of January, 2018, by and between Weber County, a body politic of the State of Utah, hereinafter referred to as "County," and Richard Williams, hereinafter referred to as "Attorney." County and Attorney are sometimes referred to individually as "Party" and collectively as "Parties."

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, pursuant to Chapter 32 of Title 77, Utah Code Ann. (1953, as amended), County has the responsibility to provide legal counsel to every indigent person who faces the substantial probability of deprivation of his or her liberty; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Chapter 6 of Title 78A, Utah Code Ann. (1953, as amended) and other corresponding provisions and appellate court decisions, County has the obligation to provide legal counsel in abuse, neglect, and dependency proceedings; in termination of parental rights proceedings; and in delinquency and contempt proceedings; and

WHEREAS, Attorney is a member of the Utah State Bar Association in good standing and admitted to practice law before the courts of the State of Utah; and

WHEREAS, Attorney is willing to represent persons in the Second District Juvenile Court when appointed by the Court in accordance with paragraph one, two, and three below;

- Delinquency Representation: Attorney agrees to provide competent legal counsel to
 any minor defendant where the court appoints the Attorney pursuant to Utah Code §
 78A-6-1111(1)(e), and the minor defendant has been charged with a delinquent act be
 it felony, misdemeanor, status offense, or certification proceeding. Attorney shall
 represent such minor defendants in all matters before the court including but not
 limited to juvenile court probation violations hearings, order to show cause hearings,
 detention hearings, and restitution hearings.
- Child Welfare Representation: Attorney agrees to represent and provide competent legal counsel to any parent or legal guardian where the following criteria have been met:
 - a. The parent or legal guardian is involved in an abuse, neglect, dependency, contempt, or termination of parental rights proceeding brought by the Utah Attorney General's Office for the Utah Division of Family Services pursuant to Utah Code § 78A-6-1111 et al;
 - The court has found that the parent or legal guardian is indigent pursuant to the statutory indigency guidelines; and

- c. The court has appointed the Attorney to represent the parent or legal guardian.
- Private Termination Representation: Attorney agrees to represent and provide competent legal counsel to any parent where the following criteria have been met:
 - The parent is involved in a termination of parental rights proceeding that was brought by a private party;
 - The court has made a finding that failure to appoint counsel will result in a deprivation of due process;
 - The court has found that the parent is indigent pursuant to the statutory indigency guidelines; and
 - d. The court has appointed the Attorney to represent the parent.
- 4. In the event Attorney is appointed to represent a client as a result of the client's indigency, Attorney agrees to promptly notify the court of any changes with regard to the indigent status of client, which changes would affect the qualifying of the client for court-appointed counsel.
- Attorney agrees to be supervised by an attorney who has been hired by County to act as the coordinating attorney ("Coordinating Attorney") and to accept assignments from said Coordinating Attorney to cover specific court calendars and other hearings as necessary.
- Attorney will provide the Coordinating Attorney with caseload information on a monthly basis on a form approved by the Coordinating Attorney including information about the cases which have gone to trial.
- 7. Attorney will seek to identify potential conflicts or complaints that persons may have against Attorney and work diligently to avoid any complaints being lodged against Attorney. Attorney will immediately communicate to the Coordinating Attorney any complaints that may be lodged by anyone against Attorney and work diligently to resolve any such complaint.
- 8. Attorney will be responsible for scanning any paper files once they are closed and destroying the hard copy of the file. In the event that Attorney fails to scan closed paper files and destroy the hard copies, County may withhold the costs for doing so from Attorneys final paycheck. Attorney agrees to cooperate with Coordinating Attorney in transferring the digital copies of closed files to the Coordinating Attorney.
- 9. Attorney will assist Coordinating Attorney in the development of a list of court approved investigators and expert witnesses and make diligent efforts to utilize only those investigators and expert witnesses found on such list. If Attorney feels it necessary to utilize an expert witness or investigator who is not on the approved list, Attorney agrees to first consult with the Coordinating Attorney before making any such request of the Court.

- 10. Attorney shall submit to the Coordinating Attorney an electronic copy of each and every motion, memoranda, and appellate brief Attorney files. Attorney is not required to submit said copies prior to the respective due dates but shall submit copies to the Coordinating Attorney as soon thereafter as is practicable. Attorney will not be required to submit copies of client court reports, or any other such reports, unless requested by the Coordinating Attorney.
- 11. Attorney shall submit to the Coordinating Attorney an electronic copy of each request for transcripts, request for appointment of expert witness, or any other motion, request, or stipulation that will require payment by the County, and shall submit such copies simultaneously with the filing of the original documents with the Court. Attorney shall also work to ensure that such requests are necessary for case preparation.
- 12. If at any time Attorney's case load becomes sufficiently burdensome to create an ineffective assistance of counsel issue or could cause the attorney to be in violation of the Rules of Professional Conduct, Attorney shall immediately notify the Coordinating Attorney and determine a proper course of action to remedy the situation.
- 13. Attorney is expected to provide coverage for other contract attorneys when necessary and when Attorney is available to provide coverage. When possible, the attorneys should attempt to trade coverage at the time coverage is procured. When a simultaneous trade is not possible, the attorney whose calendar was covered should make reasonable efforts to reciprocate coverage for the attorney who covered for him/her upon request.
- 14. If the Coordinating Attorney determines that the attorney who provided coverage made reasonable efforts to procure coverage from the attorney for whom he/she provided coverage and the other attorney is unwilling or unable to provide coverage within six months of the original coverage having been provided, the covering attorney shall be compensated \$250 by the attorney who was covered. This amount shall be deducted from the paycheck of the attorney whose calendar was covered and added to the paycheck of the covering attorney.
- 15. When Attorney will miss his/her regular court assignment due to trial, vacation, seminar, etc., Attorney shall arrange with another contract attorney to cover Attorney's court. If Attorney fails to procure coverage and does not appear at Attorney's court assignment, the sum of \$600 shall be deducted from Attorney's pay and paid to the attorney[s] who provided coverage for Attorney (if any is provided). The arrangement for court coverage shall be coordinated with the Coordinating Attorney.
- 16. The term of this Agreement shall be from January 1, 2018 through December 31, 2019.
- 17. County agrees to pay Attorney the following amounts annually:

Basis for Amount	Amount
Delinquency Representation	\$68,458

Total	260 (80
Total	\$68,458

Payment shall be made to the Attorney in equal monthly installments of \$5,704.83 per month. The first installment is due before the end of January 2018 and a like sum on the last day of each month thereafter through December 31, 2019.

County agrees to pay Attorney at the rate of \$100 per hour for services provided in Private Termination Cases pursuant to paragraph three above. Attorney agrees to submit invoices for payment to the Civil Division of the Weber County Attorney's Office no more than three months after the work detailed in the invoice was completed. County reserves the right to refuse payment for any work that was performed more than three months prior to the submission of the invoice.

- 18. Attorney's compensation is based on the number of years Attorney has practiced. County agrees to periodically increase the compensation to Attorney up to a maximum of 30 years.
- 19. Attorney agrees to maintain professional malpractice insurance with limits of \$100,000 per person and an aggregate of \$300,000 and provide to County evidence of the insurance. In addition, Attorney agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold County harmless from all damage, loss, or injury Attorney may suffer or be held liable for as a result of Attorney's conduct.
- Attorney agrees to abide by the rules of Professional Conduct of the American Bar
 Association, the Utah State Bar Association, and the laws of the State of Utah, including
 but not necessarily limited to the provisions of Chapter 32 of Title 77, Utah Code Ann.
 (1953, as amended).
- Attorney agrees to keep abreast of all current legal trends and to that end shall maintain sufficient continuing professional education credits during the period of this Agreement.
- 22. Throughout the term of this Agreement, Attorney agrees to maintain access to an office within Weber County where Attorney can meet with clients which Attorney serves under the terms of this Agreement. Attorney agrees to be available and accessible to clients reasonably in advance of any hearing or trial, to make reasonable efforts to visit clients who are incarcerated, to return telephone calls as soon as reasonably possible, and to otherwise be reasonably accessible to all clients.
- 23. Attorney agrees to use his/her best efforts to avoid any conflicts of interest which would divide loyalty of Attorney to the client. The Parties, however, recognize that certain cases may arise where conflicts are of sufficient magnitude that the Attorney cannot represent the person charged. Conflicts of interest shall only be deemed to exist after a determination of the appointing Court.

- 24. Attorney will represent various clients that would typically be assigned to other contract attorneys when the court deems there is a conflict of interest preventing the other contract attorney from representing the client. Any such representation shall be at no additional cost to County, with such assignments being made under the direction of the Coordinating Attorney.
- 25. Nothing in this agreement shall prohibit Attorney from representing private clients so long as the representation of private clients does not interfere with or create a conflict of interest in the representation of clients appointed under this Agreement.
- 26. Unless the fee is waived by the court based upon the client's financial condition, Attorney agrees to assist County in the continued implementation of a fee recovery program whereby Defendants receiving assistance of appointed counsel shall repay to County a portion of the expense thereof as a matter of restitution, based upon a schedule approved by the Weber County Commission.
- This Agreement may not be assigned by Attorney. Attorney is an independent contractor and shall not act as an agent for County.
- 28. County has established an indigent expense fund and will continue to fund the expense fund for the term of this Agreement. The expense fund may be used by all attorneys representing indigent defendants in County. Appropriate expenses shall include, but shall not be limited to laboratory costs, transcripts, defense witness fees, and extraordinary investigator fees. Attorney will bear all other expenses in providing the services contemplated herein, including but not limited to, transportation, office, telephone, postage, copying, and secretarial costs. While ensuring that Attorney's client receives an adequate and reasonable defense, Attorney hereby agrees to use his/her best efforts to minimize the cost and expenses to be deducted from the fund.
- 29. Before any of the expense funds are expended, Attorney shall first consult with the Coordinating Attorney and then shall make application for approval of expenses in the form of a written motion to the trial judge and shall specify the reasons for the expense. Payment for any expense incurred by the Attorney and not previously approved by the Court, or in excess of that approved by the Court, shall be the sole responsibility of the Attorney. In the event the total court approved expenses exhaust the expense fund for the year, the Attorney shall apply in writing to the Weber County Clerk/Auditor for approval of additional funds.
- Attorney or County may terminate this Agreement without cause upon sixty days written notice to the other Party.
- 31. This Agreement may be terminated at any time for cause. Cause shall include but not be limited to a suspension or revocation of Attorney's license to practice law in the State

of Utah, a breach of this Agreement, or behavior which brings disrepute to other contract attorneys or to County.

- 32. In the case of a breach or violation of a term of this Agreement, Attorney shall be given seven calendar days to cure the breach or violation. Failure of the Attorney to cure the breach or violation within the specified period shall result in termination of this Agreement. In the event this Agreement is terminated, the Parties agree that County may award this contract to other legal counsel and deduct the costs from the compensation identified in Paragraph 17 of this Agreement.
- Any notice required by this agreement shall be given in writing addressed to the following unless otherwise designated in writing.

FOR THE COUNTY:	FOR THE ATTORNEY:
Weber County Attorney	
2380 Washington Blvd., Suite 230	
Ogden, UT 84401	

- 34. In the event this Agreement is terminated or is not renewed, Attorney agrees to cooperate with his successor including the filing of all necessary pleadings for withdrawal and to deliver all applicable files, information, and materials to the successor.
- This Agreement can be changed, modified, or amended only by written agreement of the Parties.
- 36. Attorney is an independent contractor and is responsible to pay any and all taxes and fees which may result from the compensation paid to Attorney pursuant to this Agreement.
- 37. This Agreement shall constitute the entire agreement between the Parties and any prior understanding or representation of any kind preceding the date of this Agreement shall not be binding upon either Party except to the extent incorporated in this Agreement.
- 38. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Utah.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the undersigned have affixed their respective signatures hereto the dates indicated below.

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF WEBER COUNTY.

Jim Harvey Chair

Commissioner Ebert voted Commissioner Gibson voted Commissioner Harvey voted 0

ATTEST:

Ricky Fatch, CPA Weber County

ATTORNEY

Richard Williams

Date /- 3 -- 22/ 8

INDIGENT DEFENSE COORDINATOR

Michael D. Bouwhuis

Date //3/18

1/9/2018

AGREEMENT FOR INDIGENT DEFENSE ATTORNEY JUVENILE COURT

This Agreement is made effective the 1st day of January, 2018, by and between Weber County, a body politic of the State of Utah, hereinafter referred to as "County," and Mary Anne. Ellis, hereinafter referred to as "Attorney." County and Attorney are sometimes referred to individually as "Party" and collectively as "Parties."

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, pursuant to Chapter 32 of Title 77, Utah Code Ann. (1953, as amended), County has the responsibility to provide legal counsel to every indigent person who faces the substantial probability of deprivation of his or her liberty; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Chapter 6 of Title 78A, Utah Code Ann. (1953, as amended) and other corresponding provisions and appellate court decisions, County has the obligation to provide legal counsel in abuse, neglect, and dependency proceedings; in termination of parental rights proceedings; and in delinquency and contempt proceedings; and

WHEREAS, Attorney is a member of the Utah State Bar Association in good standing and admitted to practice law before the courts of the State of Utah; and

WHEREAS, Attorney is willing to represent persons in the Second District Juvenile Court when appointed by the Court in accordance with paragraph one, two, and three below;

- 1. <u>Delinquency Representation:</u> Attorney agrees to provide competent legal counsel to any minor defendant where the court appoints the Attorney pursuant to Utah Code § 78A-6-1111(1)(e), and the minor defendant has been charged with a delinquent act be it felony, misdemeanor, status offense, or certification proceeding. Attorney shall represent such minor defendants in all matters before the court including but not limited to juvenile court probation violations hearings, order to show cause hearings, detention hearings, and restitution hearings.
- Child Welfare Representation: Attorney agrees to represent and provide competent legal counsel to any parent or legal guardian where the following criteria have been met:
 - a. The parent or legal guardian is involved in an abuse, neglect, dependency, contempt, or termination of parental rights proceeding brought by the Utah Attorney General's Office for the Utah Division of Family Services pursuant to Utah Code δ 78A-6-1111 et al:
 - The court has found that the parent or legal guardian is indigent pursuant to the statutory indigency guidelines; and

- c. The court has appointed the Attorney to represent the parent or legal guardian.
- Private Termination Representation: Attorney agrees to represent and provide competent legal counsel to any parent where the following criteria have been met:
 - The parent is involved in a termination of parental rights proceeding that was brought by a private party;
 - The court has made a finding that failure to appoint counsel will result in a deprivation of due process;
 - The court has found that the parent is indigent pursuant to the statutory indigency guidelines; and
 - d. The court has appointed the Attorney to represent the parent.
- 4. In the event Attorney is appointed to represent a client as a result of the client's indigency, Attorney agrees to promptly notify the court of any changes with regard to the indigent status of client, which changes would affect the qualifying of the client for court-appointed counsel.
- Attorney agrees to be supervised by an attorney who has been hired by County to act as
 the coordinating attorney ("Coordinating Attorney") and to accept assignments from said
 Coordinating Attorney to cover specific court calendars and other hearings as necessary.
- Attorney will provide the Coordinating Attorney with caseload information on a monthly basis on a form approved by the Coordinating Attorney including information about the cases which have gone to trial.
- 7. Attorney will seek to identify potential conflicts or complaints that persons may have against Attorney and work diligently to avoid any complaints being lodged against Attorney. Attorney will immediately communicate to the Coordinating Attorney any complaints that may be lodged by anyone against Attorney and work diligently to resolve any such complaint.
- 8. Attorney will be responsible for scanning any paper files once they are closed and destroying the hard copy of the file. In the event that Attorney fails to scan closed paper files and destroy the hard copies, County may withhold the costs for doing so from Attorneys final paycheck. Attorney agrees to cooperate with Coordinating Attorney in transferring the digital copies of closed files to the Coordinating Attorney.
- 9. Attorney will assist Coordinating Attorney in the development of a list of court approved investigators and expert witnesses and make diligent efforts to utilize only those investigators and expert witnesses found on such list. If Attorney feels it necessary to utilize an expert witness or investigator who is not on the approved list, Attorney agrees to first consult with the Coordinating Attorney before making any such request of the Court.

- 10. Attorney shall submit to the Coordinating Attorney an electronic copy of each and every motion, memoranda, and appellate brief Attorney files. Attorney is not required to submit said copies prior to the respective due dates but shall submit copies to the Coordinating Attorney as soon thereafter as is practicable. Attorney will not be required to submit copies of client court reports, or any other such reports, unless requested by the Coordinating Attorney.
- 11. Attorney shall submit to the Coordinating Attorney an electronic copy of each request for transcripts, request for appointment of expert witness, or any other motion, request, or stipulation that will require payment by the County, and shall submit such copies simultaneously with the filing of the original documents with the Court. Attorney shall also work to ensure that such requests are necessary for case preparation.
- 12. If at any time Attorney's case load becomes sufficiently burdensome to create an ineffective assistance of counsel issue or could cause the attorney to be in violation of the Rules of Professional Conduct, Attorney shall immediately notify the Coordinating Attorney and determine a proper course of action to remedy the situation.
- 13. Attorney is expected to provide coverage for other contract attorneys when necessary and when Attorney is available to provide coverage. When possible, the attorneys should attempt to trade coverage at the time coverage is procured. When a simultaneous trade is not possible, the attorney whose calendar was covered should make reasonable efforts to reciprocate coverage for the attorney who covered for him/her upon request.
- 14. If the Coordinating Attorney determines that the attorney who provided coverage made reasonable efforts to procure coverage from the attorney for whom he/she provided coverage and the other attorney is unwilling or unable to provide coverage within six months of the original coverage having been provided, the covering attorney shall be compensated \$250 by the attorney who was covered. This amount shall be deducted from the paycheck of the attorney whose calendar was covered and added to the paycheck of the covering attorney.
- 15. When Attorney will miss his/her regular court assignment due to trial, vacation, seminar, etc., Attorney shall arrange with another contract attorney to cover Attorney's court. If Attorney fails to procure coverage and does not appear at Attorney's court assignment, the sum of \$600 shall be deducted from Attorney's pay and paid to the attorney[s] who provided coverage for Attorney (if any is provided). The arrangement for court coverage shall be coordinated with the Coordinating Attorney.
- 16. The term of this Agreement shall be from January 1, 2018 through December 31, 2019.
- 17. County agrees to pay Attorney the following amounts annually:

Basis for Amount	Amount
Child Welfare Representation	\$70,983

Juvenile Detention Hearings	\$8,400
Total	\$79,383

Payment shall be made to the Attorney in equal monthly installments of \$6,615.25 per month. The first installment is due before the end of January 2018 and a like sum on the last day of each month thereafter through December 31, 2019.

County agrees to pay Attorney at the rate of \$100 per hour for services provided in Private Termination Cases pursuant to paragraph three above. Attorney agrees to submit invoices for payment to the Civil Division of the Weber County Attorney's Office no more than three months after the work detailed in the invoice was completed. County reserves the right to refuse payment for any work that was performed more than three months prior to the submission of the invoice.

- 18. Attorney's compensation is based on the number of years Attorney has practiced. County agrees to periodically increase the compensation to Attorney up to a maximum of 30 years.
- 19. Attorney agrees to maintain professional malpractice insurance with limits of \$100,000 per person and an aggregate of \$300,000 and provide to County evidence of the insurance. In addition, Attorney agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold County harmless from all damage, loss, or injury Attorney may suffer or be held liable for as a result of Attorney's conduct.
- Attorney agrees to abide by the rules of Professional Conduct of the American Bar Association, the Utah State Bar Association, and the laws of the State of Utah, including but not necessarily limited to the provisions of Chapter 32 of Title 77, Utah Code Ann. (1953, as amended).
- Attorney agrees to keep abreast of all current legal trends and to that end shall maintain sufficient continuing professional education credits during the period of this Agreement.
- 22. Throughout the term of this Agreement, Attorney agrees to maintain access to an office within Weber County where Attorney can meet with clients which Attorney serves under the terms of this Agreement. Attorney agrees to be available and accessible to clients reasonably in advance of any hearing or trial, to make reasonable efforts to visit clients who are incarcerated, to return telephone calls as soon as reasonably possible, and to otherwise be reasonably accessible to all clients.
- 23. Attorney agrees to use his/her best efforts to avoid any conflicts of interest which would divide loyalty of Attorney to the client. The Parties, however, recognize that certain cases may arise where conflicts are of sufficient magnitude that the Attorney cannot represent the person charged. Conflicts of interest shall only be deemed to exist after a determination of the appointing Court.

- 24. Attorney will represent various clients that would typically be assigned to other contract attorneys when the court deems there is a conflict of interest preventing the other contract attorney from representing the client. Any such representation shall be at no additional cost to County, with such assignments being made under the direction of the Coordinating Attorney.
- 25. Nothing in this agreement shall prohibit Attorney from representing private clients so long as the representation of private clients does not interfere with or create a conflict of interest in the representation of clients appointed under this Agreement.
- 26. Unless the fee is waived by the court based upon the client's financial condition, Attorney agrees to assist County in the continued implementation of a fee recovery program whereby Defendants receiving assistance of appointed counsel shall repay to County a portion of the expense thereof as a matter of restitution, based upon a schedule approved by the Weber County Commission.
- This Agreement may not be assigned by Attorney. Attorney is an independent contractor and shall not act as an agent for County.
- 28. County has established an indigent expense fund and will continue to fund the expense fund for the term of this Agreement. The expense fund may be used by all attorneys representing indigent defendants in County. Appropriate expenses shall include, but shall not be limited to laboratory costs, transcripts, defense witness fees, and extraordinary investigator fees. Attorney will bear all other expenses in providing the services contemplated herein, including but not limited to, transportation, office, telephone, postage, copying, and secretarial costs. While ensuring that Attorney's client receives an adequate and reasonable defense, Attorney hereby agrees to use his/her best efforts to minimize the cost and expenses to be deducted from the fund.
- 29. Before any of the expense funds are expended, Attorney shall first consult with the Coordinating Attorney and then shall make application for approval of expenses in the form of a written motion to the trial judge and shall specify the reasons for the expense. Payment for any expense incurred by the Attorney and not previously approved by the Court, or in excess of that approved by the Court, shall be the sole responsibility of the Attorney. In the event the total court approved expenses exhaust the expense fund for the year, the Attorney shall apply in writing to the Weber County Clerk/Auditor for approval of additional funds.
- Attorney or County may terminate this Agreement without cause upon sixty days written notice to the other Party.
- 31. This Agreement may be terminated at any time for cause. Cause shall include but not be limited to a suspension or revocation of Attorney's license to practice law in the State

- of Utah, a breach of this Agreement, or behavior which brings disrepute to other contract attorneys or to County.
- 32. In the case of a breach or violation of a term of this Agreement, Attorney shall be given seven calendar days to cure the breach or violation. Failure of the Attorney to cure the breach or violation within the specified period shall result in termination of this Agreement. In the event this Agreement is terminated, the Parties agree that County may award this contract to other legal counsel and deduct the costs from the compensation identified in Paragraph 17 of this Agreement.
- 33. Any notice required by this agreement shall be given in writing addressed to the following unless otherwise designated in writing.

FOR THE COUNTY:

Weber County Attorney 2380 Washington Blvd., Suite 230 Ogden, UT 84401

FOR THE ATTORNEY:

Mary Anne Ellis 1040 N. 3000 W Ogden, UT 84404

- 34. In the event this Agreement is terminated or is not renewed, Attorney agrees to cooperate with his successor including the filing of all necessary pleadings for withdrawal and to deliver all applicable files, information, and materials to the successor.
- 35. This Agreement can be changed, modified, or amended only by written agreement of the Parties.
- 36. Attorney is an independent contractor and is responsible to pay any and all taxes and fees which may result from the compensation paid to Attorney pursuant to this Agreement.
- 37. This Agreement shall constitute the entire agreement between the Parties and any prior understanding or representation of any kind preceding the date of this Agreement shall not be binding upon either Party except to the extent incorporated in this Agreement.
- 38. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Utah.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the undersigned have affixed their respective signatures hereto the dates indicated below.

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

OF WEBER COUNTY

Commissioner Ebert voted Commissioner Gibson voted Commissioner Harvey voted V

ATTEST:

Ricky Hatch, CPA Weber County

ATTORNEY

Date

INDIGENT DEFENSE COORDINATOR

Michael D. Bouwhuis

1/9/2018

AGREEMENT FOR INDIGENT DEFENSE ATTORNEY JUVENILE COURT

This Agreement is made effective the 1st day of January, 2018, by and between Weber County, a body politic of the State of Utah, hereinafter referred to as "County," and Jonathan Pace, hereinafter referred to as "Attorney." County and Attorney are sometimes referred to individually as "Party" and collectively as "Parties."

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, pursuant to Chapter 32 of Title 77, Utah Code Ann. (1953, as amended), County has the responsibility to provide legal counsel to every indigent person who faces the substantial probability of deprivation of his or her liberty; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Chapter 6 of Title 78A, Utah Code Ann. (1953, as amended) and other corresponding provisions and appellate court decisions, County has the obligation to provide legal counsel in abuse, neglect, and dependency proceedings; in termination of parental rights proceedings; and in delinquency and contempt proceedings; and

WHEREAS, Attorney is a member of the Utah State Bar Association in good standing and admitted to practice law before the courts of the State of Utah; and

WHEREAS, Attorney is willing to represent persons in the Second District Juvenile Court when appointed by the Court in accordance with paragraph one, two, and three below;

- 1. <u>Delinquency Representation</u>: Attorney agrees to provide competent legal counsel to any minor defendant where the court appoints the Attorney pursuant to Utah Code § 78A-6-1111(1)(e), and the minor defendant has been charged with a delinquent act be it felony, misdemeanor, status offense, or certification proceeding. Attorney shall represent such minor defendants in all matters before the court including but not limited to juvenile court probation violations hearings, order to show cause hearings, detention hearings, and restitution hearings.
- Child Welfare Representation: Attorney agrees to represent and provide competent legal counsel to any parent or legal guardian where the following criteria have been met:
 - a. The parent or legal guardian is involved in an abuse, neglect, dependency, contempt, or termination of parental rights proceeding brought by the Utah Attorney General's Office for the Utah Division of Family Services pursuant to Utah Code § 78A-6-1111 et al;
 - The court has found that the parent or legal guardian is indigent pursuant to the statutory indigency guidelines; and

- c. The court has appointed the Attorney to represent the parent or legal guardian.
- Private Termination Representation: Attorney agrees to represent and provide competent legal counsel to any parent where the following criteria have been met:
 - The parent is involved in a termination of parental rights proceeding that was brought by a private party;
 - The court has made a finding that failure to appoint counsel will result in a deprivation of due process;
 - The court has found that the parent is indigent pursuant to the statutory indigency guidelines; and
 - d. The court has appointed the Attorney to represent the parent.
- 4. In the event Attorney is appointed to represent a client as a result of the client's indigency, Attorney agrees to promptly notify the court of any changes with regard to the indigent status of client, which changes would affect the qualifying of the client for court-appointed counsel.
- Attorney agrees to be supervised by an attorney who has been hired by County to act as
 the coordinating attorney ("Coordinating Attorney") and to accept assignments from said
 Coordinating Attorney to cover specific court calendars and other hearings as necessary.
- Attorney will provide the Coordinating Attorney with caseload information on a monthly
 basis on a form approved by the Coordinating Attorney including information about the
 cases which have gone to trial.
- 7. Attorney will seek to identify potential conflicts or complaints that persons may have against Attorney and work diligently to avoid any complaints being lodged against Attorney. Attorney will immediately communicate to the Coordinating Attorney any complaints that may be lodged by anyone against Attorney and work diligently to resolve any such complaint.
- 8. Attorney will be responsible for scanning any paper files once they are closed and destroying the hard copy of the file. In the event that Attorney fails to scan closed paper files and destroy the hard copies, County may withhold the costs for doing so from Attorneys final paycheck. Attorney agrees to cooperate with Coordinating Attorney in transferring the digital copies of closed files to the Coordinating Attorney.
- 9. Attorney will assist Coordinating Attorney in the development of a list of court approved investigators and expert witnesses and make diligent efforts to utilize only those investigators and expert witnesses found on such list. If Attorney feels it necessary to utilize an expert witness or investigator who is not on the approved list, Attorney agrees to first consult with the Coordinating Attorney before making any such request of the Court.

- 10. Attorney shall submit to the Coordinating Attorney an electronic copy of each and every motion, memoranda, and appellate brief Attorney files. Attorney is not required to submit said copies prior to the respective due dates but shall submit copies to the Coordinating Attorney as soon thereafter as is practicable. Attorney will not be required to submit copies of client court reports, or any other such reports, unless requested by the Coordinating Attorney.
- 11. Attorney shall submit to the Coordinating Attorney an electronic copy of each request for transcripts, request for appointment of expert witness, or any other motion, request, or stipulation that will require payment by the County, and shall submit such copies simultaneously with the filing of the original documents with the Court. Attorney shall also work to ensure that such requests are necessary for case preparation.
- 12. If at any time Attorney's case load becomes sufficiently burdensome to create an ineffective assistance of counsel issue or could cause the attorney to be in violation of the Rules of Professional Conduct, Attorney shall immediately notify the Coordinating Attorney and determine a proper course of action to remedy the situation.
- 13. Attorney is expected to provide coverage for other contract attorneys when necessary and when Attorney is available to provide coverage. When possible, the attorneys should attempt to trade coverage at the time coverage is procured. When a simultaneous trade is not possible, the attorney whose calendar was covered should make reasonable efforts to reciprocate coverage for the attorney who covered for him/her upon request.
- 14. If the Coordinating Attorney determines that the attorney who provided coverage made reasonable efforts to procure coverage from the attorney for whom he/she provided coverage and the other attorney is unwilling or unable to provide coverage within six months of the original coverage having been provided, the covering attorney shall be compensated \$250 by the attorney who was covered. This amount shall be deducted from the paycheck of the attorney whose calendar was covered and added to the paycheck of the covering attorney.
- 15. When Attorney will miss his/her regular court assignment due to trial, vacation, seminar, etc., Attorney shall arrange with another contract attorney to cover Attorney's court. If Attorney fails to procure coverage and does not appear at Attorney's court assignment, the sum of \$600 shall be deducted from Attorney's pay and paid to the attorney[s] who provided coverage for Attorney (if any is provided). The arrangement for court coverage shall be coordinated with the Coordinating Attorney.
- 16. The term of this Agreement shall be from January 1, 2018 through December 31, 2019.
- County agrees to pay Attorney the following amounts annually:

Basis for Amount	Amount
Child Welfare Representation	\$80,951

Juvenile Coordinator	\$10,400
Total	\$91,351

Payment shall be made to the Attorney in equal monthly installments of \$7,612.58 per month. The first installment is due before the end of January 2018 and a like sum on the last day of each month thereafter through December 31, 2019.

County agrees to pay Attorney at the rate of \$100 per hour for services provided in Private Termination Cases pursuant to paragraph three above. Attorney agrees to submit invoices for payment to the Civil Division of the Weber County Attorney's Office no more than three months after the work detailed in the invoice was completed. County reserves the right to refuse payment for any work that was performed more than three months prior to the submission of the invoice.

- 18. Attorney's compensation is based on the number of years Attorney has practiced. County agrees to periodically increase the compensation to Attorney up to a maximum of 30 years.
- 19. Attorney agrees to maintain professional malpractice insurance with limits of \$100,000 per person and an aggregate of \$300,000 and provide to County evidence of the insurance. In addition, Attorney agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold County harmless from all damage, loss, or injury Attorney may suffer or be held liable for as a result of Attorney's conduct.
- Attorney agrees to abide by the rules of Professional Conduct of the American Bar
 Association, the Utah State Bar Association, and the laws of the State of Utah, including
 but not necessarily limited to the provisions of Chapter 32 of Title 77, Utah Code Ann.
 (1953, as amended).
- Attorney agrees to keep abreast of all current legal trends and to that end shall maintain sufficient continuing professional education credits during the period of this Agreement.
 - Attorney agrees to make reasonable efforts to attend at least 80% of the periodic public defender training/coordination meetings.
- 22. Throughout the term of this Agreement, Attorney agrees to maintain access to an office within Weber County where Attorney can meet with clients which Attorney serves under the terms of this Agreement. Attorney agrees to be available and accessible to clients reasonably in advance of any hearing or trial, to make reasonable efforts to visit clients who are incarcerated, to return telephone calls as soon as reasonably possible, and to otherwise be reasonably accessible to all clients.
- 23. Attorney agrees to use his/her best efforts to avoid any conflicts of interest which would divide loyalty of Attorney to the client. The Parties, however, recognize that certain cases may arise where conflicts are of sufficient magnitude that the Attorney cannot

- represent the person charged. Conflicts of interest shall only be deemed to exist after a determination of the appointing Court.
- 24. Attorney will represent various clients that would typically be assigned to other contract attorneys when the court deems there is a conflict of interest preventing the other contract attorney from representing the client. Any such representation shall be at no additional cost to County, with such assignments being made under the direction of the Coordinating Attorney.
- 25. Nothing in this agreement shall prohibit Attorney from representing private clients so long as the representation of private clients does not interfere with or create a conflict of interest in the representation of clients appointed under this Agreement.
- 26. Unless the fee is waived by the court based upon the client's financial condition, Attorney agrees to assist County in the continued implementation of a fee recovery program whereby Defendants receiving assistance of appointed counsel shall repay to County a portion of the expense thereof as a matter of restitution, based upon a schedule approved by the Weber County Commission.
- This Agreement may not be assigned by Attorney. Attorney is an independent contractor and shall not act as an agent for County.
- 28. County has established an indigent expense fund and will continue to fund the expense fund for the term of this Agreement. The expense fund may be used by all attorneys representing indigent defendants in County. Appropriate expenses shall include, but shall not be limited to laboratory costs, transcripts, defense witness fees, and extraordinary investigator fees. Attorney will bear all other expenses in providing the services contemplated herein, including but not limited to, transportation, office, telephone, postage, copying, and secretarial costs. While ensuring that Attorney's client receives an adequate and reasonable defense, Attorney hereby agrees to use his/her best efforts to minimize the cost and expenses to be deducted from the fund.
- 29. Before any of the expense funds are expended, Attorney shall first consult with the Coordinating Attorney and then shall make application for approval of expenses in the form of a written motion to the trial judge and shall specify the reasons for the expense. Payment for any expense incurred by the Attorney and not previously approved by the Court, or in excess of that approved by the Court, shall be the sole responsibility of the Attorney. In the event the total court approved expenses exhaust the expense fund for the year, the Attorney shall apply in writing to the Weber County Clerk/Auditor for approval of additional funds.
- Attorney or County may terminate this Agreement without cause upon sixty days written notice to the other Party.

- 31. This Agreement may be terminated at any time for cause. Cause shall include but not be limited to a suspension or revocation of Attorney's license to practice law in the State of Utah, a breach of this Agreement, or behavior which brings disrepute to other contract attorneys or to County.
- 32. In the case of a breach or violation of a term of this Agreement, Attorney shall be given seven calendar days to cure the breach or violation. Failure of the Attorney to cure the breach or violation within the specified period shall result in termination of this Agreement. In the event this Agreement is terminated, the Parties agree that County may award this contract to other legal counsel and deduct the costs from the compensation identified in Paragraph 17 of this Agreement.
- Any notice required by this agreement shall be given in writing addressed to the following unless otherwise designated in writing.

FOR THE COUNTY:	FOR THE ATTORNEY:
Weber County Attorney	Jonathan Pare 42 South 100 West
2380 Washington Blvd., Suite 230	Buighou City utoh 8430:

- 34. In the event this Agreement is terminated or is not renewed, Attorney agrees to cooperate with his successor including the filing of all necessary pleadings for withdrawal and to deliver all applicable files, information, and materials to the successor.
- This Agreement can be changed, modified, or amended only by written agreement of the Parties.
- Attorney is an independent contractor and is responsible to pay any and all taxes and fees
 which may result from the compensation paid to Attorney pursuant to this Agreement.
- 37. This Agreement shall constitute the entire agreement between the Parties and any prior understanding or representation of any kind preceding the date of this Agreement shall not be binding upon either Party except to the extent incorporated in this Agreement.
- 38. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Utah.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the undersigned have affixed their respective signatures hereto the dates indicated below.

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF WEBER COUNTY

Tim Unway Ch

Commissioner Ebert voted Commissioner Gibson voted Commissioner Harvey voted

ATTEST:

5 F

Ricky Hatch, CPA Weber County

ATTORNEY

Jonathan Pace

INDIGENT DEFENSE COORDINATOR

Michael D. Bouwhuis

Date

1/9/2018

AGREEMENT FOR INDIGENT DEFENSE ATTORNEY JUVENILE COURT

This Agreement is made effective the 1st day of January, 2018, by and between Weber County, a body politic of the State of Utah, hereinafter referred to as "County," and Carol Mortensen, hereinafter referred to as "Attorney." County and Attorney are sometimes referred to individually as "Party" and collectively as "Parties."

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, pursuant to Chapter 32 of Title 77, Utah Code Ann. (1953, as amended), County has the responsibility to provide legal counsel to every indigent person who faces the substantial probability of deprivation of his or her liberty; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Chapter 6 of Title 78A, Utah Code Ann. (1953, as amended) and other corresponding provisions and appellate court decisions, County has the obligation to provide legal counsel in abuse, neglect, and dependency proceedings; in termination of parental rights proceedings; and in delinquency and contempt proceedings; and

WHEREAS, Attorney is a member of the Utah State Bar Association in good standing and admitted to practice law before the courts of the State of Utah; and

WHEREAS, Attorney is willing to represent persons in the Second District Juvenile Court when appointed by the Court in accordance with paragraph one, two, and three below;

- 1. <u>Delinquency Representation:</u> Attorney agrees to provide competent legal counsel to any minor defendant where the court appoints the Attorney pursuant to Utah Code § 78A-6-1111(1)(e), and the minor defendant has been charged with a delinquent act be it felony, misdemeanor, status offense, or certification proceeding. Attorney shall represent such minor defendants in all matters before the court including but not limited to juvenile court probation violations hearings, order to show cause hearings, detention hearings, and restitution hearings.
- Child Welfare Representation: Attorney agrees to represent and provide competent legal counsel to any parent or legal guardian where the following criteria have been met:
 - a. The parent or legal guardian is involved in an abuse, neglect, dependency, contempt, or termination of parental rights proceeding brought by the Utah Attorney General's Office for the Utah Division of Family Services pursuant to Utah Code § 78A-6-1111 et al;
 - The court has found that the parent or legal guardian is indigent pursuant to the statutory indigency guidelines; and

- c. The court has appointed the Attorney to represent the parent or legal guardian.
- Private Termination Representation: Attorney agrees to represent and provide competent legal counsel to any parent where the following criteria have been met:
 - The parent is involved in a termination of parental rights proceeding that was brought by a private party;
 - The court has made a finding that failure to appoint counsel will result in a deprivation of due process;
 - The court has found that the parent is indigent pursuant to the statutory indigency guidelines; and
 - d. The court has appointed the Attorney to represent the parent.
- 4. In the event Attorney is appointed to represent a client as a result of the client's indigency, Attorney agrees to promptly notify the court of any changes with regard to the indigent status of client, which changes would affect the qualifying of the client for court-appointed counsel.
- Attorney agrees to be supervised by an attorney who has been hired by County to act as
 the coordinating attorney ("Coordinating Attorney") and to accept assignments from said
 Coordinating Attorney to cover specific court calendars and other hearings as necessary.
- Attorney will provide the Coordinating Attorney with caseload information on a monthly basis on a form approved by the Coordinating Attorney including information about the cases which have gone to trial.
- 7. Attorney will seek to identify potential conflicts or complaints that persons may have against Attorney and work diligently to avoid any complaints being lodged against Attorney. Attorney will immediately communicate to the Coordinating Attorney any complaints that may be lodged by anyone against Attorney and work diligently to resolve any such complaint.
- 8. Attorney will be responsible for scanning any paper files once they are closed and destroying the hard copy of the file. In the event that Attorney fails to scan closed paper files and destroy the hard copies, County may withhold the costs for doing so from Attorneys final paycheck. Attorney agrees to cooperate with Coordinating Attorney in transferring the digital copies of closed files to the Coordinating Attorney.
- 9. Attorney will assist Coordinating Attorney in the development of a list of court approved investigators and expert witnesses and make diligent efforts to utilize only those investigators and expert witnesses found on such list. If Attorney feels it necessary to utilize an expert witness or investigator who is not on the approved list, Attorney agrees to first consult with the Coordinating Attorney before making any such request of the Court.

- 10. Attorney shall submit to the Coordinating Attorney an electronic copy of each and every motion, memoranda, and appellate brief Attorney files. Attorney is not required to submit said copies prior to the respective due dates but shall submit copies to the Coordinating Attorney as soon thereafter as is practicable. Attorney will not be required to submit copies of client court reports, or any other such reports, unless requested by the Coordinating Attorney.
- 11. Attorney shall submit to the Coordinating Attorney an electronic copy of each request for transcripts, request for appointment of expert witness, or any other motion, request, or stipulation that will require payment by the County, and shall submit such copies simultaneously with the filing of the original documents with the Court. Attorney shall also work to ensure that such requests are necessary for case preparation.
- 12. If at any time Attorney's case load becomes sufficiently burdensome to create an ineffective assistance of counsel issue or could cause the attorney to be in violation of the Rules of Professional Conduct, Attorney shall immediately notify the Coordinating Attorney and determine a proper course of action to remedy the situation.
- 13. Attorney is expected to provide coverage for other contract attorneys when necessary and when Attorney is available to provide coverage. When possible, the attorneys should attempt to trade coverage at the time coverage is procured. When a simultaneous trade is not possible, the attorney whose calendar was covered should make reasonable efforts to reciprocate coverage for the attorney who covered for him/her upon request.
- 14. If the Coordinating Attorney determines that the attorney who provided coverage made reasonable efforts to procure coverage from the attorney for whom he/she provided coverage and the other attorney is unwilling or unable to provide coverage within six months of the original coverage having been provided, the covering attorney shall be compensated \$250 by the attorney who was covered. This amount shall be deducted from the paycheck of the attorney whose calendar was covered and added to the paycheck of the covering attorney.
- 15. When Attorney will miss his/her regular court assignment due to trial, vacation, seminar, etc., Attorney shall arrange with another contract attorney to cover Attorney's court. If Attorney fails to procure coverage and does not appear at Attorney's court assignment, the sum of \$600 shall be deducted from Attorney's pay and paid to the attorney[s] who provided coverage for Attorney (if any is provided). The arrangement for court coverage shall be coordinated with the Coordinating Attorney.
- 16. The term of this Agreement shall be from January 1, 2018 through December 31, 2019.
- 17. County agrees to pay Attorney the following amounts annually:

Basis for Amount	Amount	
Child Welfare & Delinquency Representation	\$69,561	

Delinquency Drug Court	\$1,950
Total	\$71,511

Payment shall be made to the Attorney in equal monthly installments of \$5,959.25 per month. The first installment is due before the end of January 2018 and a like sum on the last day of each month thereafter through December 31, 2019.

- 18. Attorney's compensation is based on the number of years Attorney has practiced. County agrees to periodically increase the compensation to Attorney up to a maximum of 30 years.
- 19. Attorney agrees to maintain professional malpractice insurance with limits of \$100,000 per person and an aggregate of \$300,000 and provide to County evidence of the insurance. In addition, Attorney agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold County harmless from all damage, loss, or injury Attorney may suffer or be held liable for as a result of Attorney's conduct.
- Attorney agrees to abide by the rules of Professional Conduct of the American Bar Association, the Utah State Bar Association, and the laws of the State of Utah, including but not necessarily limited to the provisions of Chapter 32 of Title 77, Utah Code Ann. (1953, as amended).
- Attorney agrees to keep abreast of all current legal trends and to that end shall maintain sufficient continuing professional education credits during the period of this Agreement.
 - Attorney agrees to make reasonable efforts to attend at least 80% of the periodic public defender training/coordination meetings.
- 22. Throughout the term of this Agreement, Attorney agrees to maintain access to an office within Weber County where Attorney can meet with clients which Attorney serves under the terms of this Agreement. Attorney agrees to be available and accessible to clients reasonably in advance of any hearing or trial, to make reasonable efforts to visit clients who are incarcerated, to return telephone calls as soon as reasonably possible, and to otherwise be reasonably accessible to all clients.
- Attorney agrees to use his/her best efforts to avoid any conflicts of interest which would divide loyalty of Attorney to the client. The Parties, however, recognize that certain

- cases may arise where conflicts are of sufficient magnitude that the Attorney cannot represent the person charged. Conflicts of interest shall only be deemed to exist after a determination of the appointing Court.
- 24. Attorney will represent various clients that would typically be assigned to other contract attorneys when the court deems there is a conflict of interest preventing the other contract attorney from representing the client. Any such representation shall be at no additional cost to County, with such assignments being made under the direction of the Coordinating Attorney.
- 25. Nothing in this agreement shall prohibit Attorney from representing private clients so long as the representation of private clients does not interfere with or create a conflict of interest in the representation of clients appointed under this Agreement.
- 26. Unless the fee is waived by the court based upon the client's financial condition, Attorney agrees to assist County in the continued implementation of a fee recovery program whereby Defendants receiving assistance of appointed counsel shall repay to County a portion of the expense thereof as a matter of restitution, based upon a schedule approved by the Weber County Commission.
- This Agreement may not be assigned by Attorney. Attorney is an independent contractor and shall not act as an agent for County.
- 28. County has established an indigent expense fund and will continue to fund the expense fund for the term of this Agreement. The expense fund may be used by all attorneys representing indigent defendants in County. Appropriate expenses shall include, but shall not be limited to laboratory costs, transcripts, defense witness fees, and extraordinary investigator fees. Attorney will bear all other expenses in providing the services contemplated herein, including but not limited to, transportation, office, telephone, postage, copying, and secretarial costs. While ensuring that Attorney's client receives an adequate and reasonable defense, Attorney hereby agrees to use his/her best efforts to minimize the cost and expenses to be deducted from the fund.
- 29. Before any of the expense funds are expended, Attorney shall first consult with the Coordinating Attorney and then shall make application for approval of expenses in the form of a written motion to the trial judge and shall specify the reasons for the expense. Payment for any expense incurred by the Attorney and not previously approved by the Court, or in excess of that approved by the Court, shall be the sole responsibility of the Attorney. In the event the total court approved expenses exhaust the expense fund for the year, the Attorney shall apply in writing to the Weber County Clerk/Auditor for approval of additional funds.
- Attorney or County may terminate this Agreement without cause upon sixty days written notice to the other Party.

- 31. This Agreement may be terminated at any time for cause. Cause shall include but not be limited to a suspension or revocation of Attorney's license to practice law in the State of Utah, a breach of this Agreement, or behavior which brings disrepute to other contract attorneys or to County.
- 32. In the case of a breach or violation of a term of this Agreement, Attorney shall be given seven calendar days to cure the breach or violation. Failure of the Attorney to cure the breach or violation within the specified period shall result in termination of this Agreement. In the event this Agreement is terminated, the Parties agree that County may award this contract to other legal counsel and deduct the costs from the compensation identified in Paragraph 17 of this Agreement.
- Any notice required by this agreement shall be given in writing addressed to the following unless otherwise designated in writing.

FOR THE COUNTY:	FOR THE ATTORNEY:
Weber County Attorney 2380 Washington Blvd., Suite 230 Ogden, UT 84401	

- 34. In the event this Agreement is terminated or is not renewed, Attorney agrees to cooperate with his successor including the filing of all necessary pleadings for withdrawal and to deliver all applicable files, information, and materials to the successor.
- This Agreement can be changed, modified, or amended only by written agreement of the Parties.
- 36. Attorney is an independent contractor and is responsible to pay any and all taxes and fees which may result from the compensation paid to Attorney pursuant to this Agreement.
- 37. This Agreement shall constitute the entire agreement between the Parties and any prior understanding or representation of any kind preceding the date of this Agreement shall not be binding upon either Party except to the extent incorporated in this Agreement.
- 38. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Utah.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the undersigned have affixed their respective signatures hereto the dates indicated below.

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF WEBER COUNTY,

By

Jim Harvey, Chair

	Commissioner Ebert voted Commissioner Gibson voted Commissioner Harvey voted
ATTEST:	
Rieky Hatch, CPA	
Weber County	
ATTORNEY	INDIGENT DEFENSE COORDINATOR
By Carol Mortensen	By Michael D. Bouwhuis
Date//3/18	Date 1/4/18

AGREEMENT FOR INDIGENT DEFENSE ATTORNEY JUVENILE COURT

This Agreement is made effective the 1st day of January, 2018, by and between Weber County, a body politic of the State of Utah, hereinafter referred to as "County," and Andrew Heyward, hereinafter referred to as "Attorney." County and Attorney are sometimes referred to individually as "Party" and collectively as "Parties."

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, pursuant to Chapter 32 of Title 77, Utah Code Ann. (1953, as amended), County has the responsibility to provide legal counsel to every indigent person who faces the substantial probability of deprivation of his or her liberty; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Chapter 6 of Title 78A, Utah Code Ann. (1953, as amended) and other corresponding provisions and appellate court decisions, County has the obligation to provide legal counsel in abuse, neglect, and dependency proceedings; in termination of parental rights proceedings; and in delinquency and contempt proceedings; and

WHEREAS, Attorney is a member of the Utah State Bar Association in good standing and admitted to practice law before the courts of the State of Utah; and

WHEREAS, Attorney is willing to represent persons in the Second District Juvenile Court when appointed by the Court in accordance with paragraph one, two, and three below;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and promises contained hereafter, the Parties agree as follows:

- 1. <u>Delinquency Representation</u>: Attorney agrees to provide competent legal counsel to any minor defendant where the court appoints the Attorney pursuant to Utah Code § 78A-6-1111(1)(e), and the minor defendant has been charged with a delinquent act be it felony, misdemeanor, status offense, or certification proceeding. Attorney shall represent such minor defendants in all matters before the court including but not limited to juvenile court probation violations hearings, order to show cause hearings, detention hearings, and restitution hearings.
- Child Welfare Representation: Attorney agrees to represent and provide competent legal counsel to any parent or legal guardian where the following criteria have been met:
 - a. The parent or legal guardian is involved in an abuse, neglect, dependency, contempt, or termination of parental rights proceeding brought by the Utah Attorney General's Office for the Utah Division of Family Services pursuant to Utah Code § 78A-6-1111 et al;
 - The court has found that the parent or legal guardian is indigent pursuant to the statutory indigency guidelines; and

- c. The court has appointed the Attorney to represent the parent or legal guardian.
- 3. Private Termination Representation: Attorney agrees to represent and provide competent legal counsel to any parent where the following criteria have been met:
 - The parent is involved in a termination of parental rights proceeding that was brought by a private party;

 The court has made a finding that failure to appoint counsel will result in a deprivation of due process;

 The court has found that the parent is indigent pursuant to the statutory indigency guidelines; and

d. The court has appointed the Attorney to represent the parent.

- 4. In the event Attorney is appointed to represent a client as a result of the client's indigency, Attorney agrees to promptly notify the court of any changes with regard to the indigent status of client, which changes would affect the qualifying of the client for court-appointed counsel.
- Attorney agrees to be supervised by an attorney who has been hired by County to act as
 the coordinating attorney ("Coordinating Attorney") and to accept assignments from said
 Coordinating Attorney to cover specific court calendars and other hearings as necessary.
- Attorney will provide the Coordinating Attorney with caseload information on a monthly basis on a form approved by the Coordinating Attorney including information about the cases which have gone to trial.
- 7. Attorney will seek to identify potential conflicts or complaints that persons may have against Attorney and work diligently to avoid any complaints being lodged against Attorney. Attorney will immediately communicate to the Coordinating Attorney any complaints that may be lodged by anyone against Attorney and work diligently to resolve any such complaint.
- 8. Attorney will be responsible for scanning any paper files once they are closed and destroying the hard copy of the file. In the event that Attorney fails to scan closed paper files and destroy the hard copies, County may withhold the costs for doing so from Attorneys final paycheck. Attorney agrees to cooperate with Coordinating Attorney in transferring the digital copies of closed files to the Coordinating Attorney.
- 9. Attorney will assist Coordinating Attorney in the development of a list of court approved investigators and expert witnesses and make diligent efforts to utilize only those investigators and expert witnesses found on such list. If Attorney feels it necessary to utilize an expert witness or investigator who is not on the approved list, Attorney agrees to first consult with the Coordinating Attorney before making any such request of the Court.

- 10. Attorney shall submit to the Coordinating Attorney an electronic copy of each and every motion, memoranda, and appellate brief Attorney files. Attorney is not required to submit said copies prior to the respective due dates but shall submit copies to the Coordinating Attorney as soon thereafter as is practicable. Attorney will not be required to submit copies of client court reports, or any other such reports, unless requested by the Coordinating Attorney.
- 11. Attorney shall submit to the Coordinating Attorney an electronic copy of each request for transcripts, request for appointment of expert witness, or any other motion, request, or stipulation that will require payment by the County, and shall submit such copies simultaneously with the filing of the original documents with the Court. Attorney shall also work to ensure that such requests are necessary for case preparation.
- 12. If at any time Attorney's case load becomes sufficiently burdensome to create an ineffective assistance of counsel issue or could cause the attorney to be in violation of the Rules of Professional Conduct, Attorney shall immediately notify the Coordinating Attorney and determine a proper course of action to remedy the situation.
- 13. Attorney is expected to provide coverage for other contract attorneys when necessary and when Attorney is available to provide coverage. When possible, the attorneys should attempt to trade coverage at the time coverage is procured. When a simultaneous trade is not possible, the attorney whose calendar was covered should make reasonable efforts to reciprocate coverage for the attorney who covered for him/her upon request.
- 14. If the Coordinating Attorney determines that the attorney who provided coverage made reasonable efforts to procure coverage from the attorney for whom he/she provided coverage and the other attorney is unwilling or unable to provide coverage within six months of the original coverage having been provided, the covering attorney shall be compensated \$250 by the attorney who was covered. This amount shall be deducted from the paycheck of the attorney whose calendar was covered and added to the paycheck of the covering attorney.
- 15. When Attorney will miss his/her regular court assignment due to trial, vacation, seminar, etc., Attorney shall arrange with another contract attorney to cover Attorney's court. If Attorney fails to procure coverage and does not appear at Attorney's court assignment, the sum of \$600 shall be deducted from Attorney's pay and paid to the attorney[s] who provided coverage for Attorney (if any is provided). The arrangement for court coverage shall be coordinated with the Coordinating Attorney.
- The term of this Agreement shall be from January 1, 2018 through December 31, 2019.
- 17. County agrees to pay Attorney the following amounts annually:

Basis for Amount	Amount
Child Welfare Representation	\$69,615

Child Welfare Drug Court	\$3,900
Total	\$73,515

Payment shall be made to the Attorney in equal monthly installments of \$6,126.25 per month. The first installment is due before the end of January 2018 and a like sum on the last day of each month thereafter through December 31, 2019.

- 18. Attorney's compensation is based on the number of years Attorney has practiced. County agrees to periodically increase the compensation to Attorney up to a maximum of 30 years.
- 19. Attorney agrees to maintain professional malpractice insurance with limits of \$100,000 per person and an aggregate of \$300,000 and provide to County evidence of the insurance. In addition, Attorney agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold County harmless from all damage, loss, or injury Attorney may suffer or be held liable for as a result of Attorney's conduct.
- 20. Attorney agrees to abide by the rules of Professional Conduct of the American Bar Association, the Utah State Bar Association, and the laws of the State of Utah, including but not necessarily limited to the provisions of Chapter 32 of Title 77, Utah Code Ann. (1953, as amended).
- Attorney agrees to keep abreast of all current legal trends and to that end shall maintain sufficient continuing professional education credits during the period of this Agreement.
 - Attorney agrees to make reasonable efforts to attend at least 80% of the periodic public defender training/coordination meetings.
- 22. Throughout the term of this Agreement, Attorney agrees to maintain access to an office within Weber County where Attorney can meet with clients which Attorney serves under the terms of this Agreement. Attorney agrees to be available and accessible to clients reasonably in advance of any hearing or trial, to make reasonable efforts to visit clients who are incarcerated, to return telephone calls as soon as reasonably possible, and to otherwise be reasonably accessible to all clients.
- Attorney agrees to use his/her best efforts to avoid any conflicts of interest which would divide loyalty of Attorney to the client. The Parties, however, recognize that certain

- cases may arise where conflicts are of sufficient magnitude that the Attorney cannot represent the person charged. Conflicts of interest shall only be deemed to exist after a determination of the appointing Court.
- 24. Attorney will represent various clients that would typically be assigned to other contract attorneys when the court deems there is a conflict of interest preventing the other contract attorney from representing the client. Any such representation shall be at no additional cost to County, with such assignments being made under the direction of the Coordinating Attorney.
- 25. Nothing in this agreement shall prohibit Attorney from representing private clients so long as the representation of private clients does not interfere with or create a conflict of interest in the representation of clients appointed under this Agreement.
- 26. Unless the fee is waived by the court based upon the client's financial condition, Attorney agrees to assist County in the continued implementation of a fee recovery program whereby Defendants receiving assistance of appointed counsel shall repay to County a portion of the expense thereof as a matter of restitution, based upon a schedule approved by the Weber County Commission.
- This Agreement may not be assigned by Attorney. Attorney is an independent contractor and shall not act as an agent for County.
- 28. County has established an indigent expense fund and will continue to fund the expense fund for the term of this Agreement. The expense fund may be used by all attorneys representing indigent defendants in County. Appropriate expenses shall include, but shall not be limited to laboratory costs, transcripts, defense witness fees, and extraordinary investigator fees. Attorney will bear all other expenses in providing the services contemplated herein, including but not limited to, transportation, office, telephone, postage, copying, and secretarial costs. While ensuring that Attorney's client receives an adequate and reasonable defense, Attorney hereby agrees to use his/her best efforts to minimize the cost and expenses to be deducted from the fund.
- 29. Before any of the expense funds are expended, Attorney shall first consult with the Coordinating Attorney and then shall make application for approval of expenses in the form of a written motion to the trial judge and shall specify the reasons for the expense. Payment for any expense incurred by the Attorney and not previously approved by the Court, or in excess of that approved by the Court, shall be the sole responsibility of the Attorney. In the event the total court approved expenses exhaust the expense fund for the year, the Attorney shall apply in writing to the Weber County Clerk/Auditor for approval of additional funds.
- Attorney or County may terminate this Agreement without cause upon sixty days written notice to the other Party.

- 31. This Agreement may be terminated at any time for cause. Cause shall include but not be limited to a suspension or revocation of Attorney's license to practice law in the State of Utah, a breach of this Agreement, or behavior which brings disrepute to other contract attorneys or to County.
- 32. In the case of a breach or violation of a term of this Agreement, Attorney shall be given seven calendar days to cure the breach or violation. Failure of the Attorney to cure the breach or violation within the specified period shall result in termination of this Agreement. In the event this Agreement is terminated, the Parties agree that County may award this contract to other legal counsel and deduct the costs from the compensation identified in Paragraph 17 of this Agreement.
- Any notice required by this agreement shall be given in writing addressed to the following unless otherwise designated in writing.

FOR THE COUNTY:	FOR THE ATTORNEY:	
	Andrew Heyward	
Weber County Attorney	986 S. 200 E.	
2380 Washington Blvd., Suite 230	Layton, UT 84041	
Ogden, UT 84401		

- 34. In the event this Agreement is terminated or is not renewed, Attorney agrees to cooperate with his successor including the filing of all necessary pleadings for withdrawal and to deliver all applicable files, information, and materials to the successor.
- This Agreement can be changed, modified, or amended only by written agreement of the Parties.
- 36. Attorney is an independent contractor and is responsible to pay any and all taxes and fees which may result from the compensation paid to Attorney pursuant to this Agreement.
- 37. This Agreement shall constitute the entire agreement between the Parties and any prior understanding or representation of any kind preceding the date of this Agreement shall not be binding upon either Party except to the extent incorporated in this Agreement.
- 38. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Utah.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the undersigned have affixed their respective signatures hereto the dates indicated below.

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF WEBER COUNTY

Jim Harvey, Chair

Commissioner Ebert voted Commissioner Gibson voted Commissioner Harvey voted V

ATTEST:

Ricky Hatch, CPA Weber County

ATTORNEY

Andrew J Heyward

Date Andrew Heyward 01/04/2018

INDIGENT DEFENSE COORDINATOR

Date

1/9/2018

AGREEMENT FOR INDIGENT DEFENSE ATTORNEY JUVENILE COURT

This Agreement is made effective the 1st day of January, 2018, by and between Weber County, a body politic of the State of Utah, hereinafter referred to as "County," and Ammon Nelson, hereinafter referred to as "Attorney." County and Attorney are sometimes referred to individually as "Party" and collectively as "Parties."

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, pursuant to Chapter 32 of Title 77, Utah Code Ann. (1953, as amended), County has the responsibility to provide legal counsel to every indigent person who faces the substantial probability of deprivation of his or her liberty; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Chapter 6 of Title 78A, Utah Code Ann. (1953, as amended) and other corresponding provisions and appellate court decisions, County has the obligation to provide legal counsel in abuse, neglect, and dependency proceedings; in termination of parental rights proceedings; and in delinquency and contempt proceedings; and

WHEREAS, Attorney is a member of the Utah State Bar Association in good standing and admitted to practice law before the courts of the State of Utah; and

WHEREAS, Attorney is willing to represent persons in the Second District Juvenile Court when appointed by the Court in accordance with paragraph one, two, and three below;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and promises contained hereafter, the Parties agree as follows:

- 1. <u>Delinquency Representation</u>: Attorney agrees to provide competent legal counsel to any minor defendant where the court appoints the Attorney pursuant to Utah Code § 78A-6-1111(1)(e), and the minor defendant has been charged with a delinquent act be it felony, misdemeanor, status offense, or certification proceeding. Attorney shall represent such minor defendants in all matters before the court including but not limited to juvenile court probation violations hearings, order to show cause hearings, detention hearings, and restitution hearings.
- Child Welfare Representation: Attorney agrees to represent and provide competent legal counsel to any parent or legal guardian where the following criteria have been met:
 - a. The parent or legal guardian is involved in an abuse, neglect, dependency, contempt, or termination of parental rights proceeding brought by the Utah Attorney General's Office for the Utah Division of Family Services pursuant to Utah Code § 78A-6-1111 et al;
 - The court has found that the parent or legal guardian is indigent pursuant to the statutory indigency guidelines; and

- c. The court has appointed the Attorney to represent the parent or legal guardian.
- Private Termination Representation: Attorney agrees to represent and provide competent legal counsel to any parent where the following criteria have been met:
 - The parent is involved in a termination of parental rights proceeding that was brought by a private party;
 - The court has made a finding that failure to appoint counsel will result in a deprivation of due process;
 - The court has found that the parent is indigent pursuant to the statutory indigency guidelines; and
 - d. The court has appointed the Attorney to represent the parent.
- 4. In the event Attorney is appointed to represent a client as a result of the client's indigency, Attorney agrees to promptly notify the court of any changes with regard to the indigent status of client, which changes would affect the qualifying of the client for court-appointed counsel.
- Attorney agrees to be supervised by an attorney who has been hired by County to act as
 the coordinating attorney ("Coordinating Attorney") and to accept assignments from said
 Coordinating Attorney to cover specific court calendars and other hearings as necessary.
- Attorney will provide the Coordinating Attorney with caseload information on a monthly basis on a form approved by the Coordinating Attorney including information about the cases which have gone to trial.
- 7. Attorney will seek to identify potential conflicts or complaints that persons may have against Attorney and work diligently to avoid any complaints being lodged against Attorney. Attorney will immediately communicate to the Coordinating Attorney any complaints that may be lodged by anyone against Attorney and work diligently to resolve any such complaint.
- 8. Attorney will be responsible for scanning any paper files once they are closed and destroying the hard copy of the file. In the event that Attorney fails to scan closed paper files and destroy the hard copies, County may withhold the costs for doing so from Attorneys final paycheck. Attorney agrees to cooperate with Coordinating Attorney in transferring the digital copies of closed files to the Coordinating Attorney.
- 9. Attorney will assist Coordinating Attorney in the development of a list of court approved investigators and expert witnesses and make diligent efforts to utilize only those investigators and expert witnesses found on such list. If Attorney feels it necessary to utilize an expert witness or investigator who is not on the approved list, Attorney agrees to first consult with the Coordinating Attorney before making any such request of the Court.

- 10. Attorney shall submit to the Coordinating Attorney an electronic copy of each and every motion, memoranda, and appellate brief Attorney files. Attorney is not required to submit said copies prior to the respective due dates but shall submit copies to the Coordinating Attorney as soon thereafter as is practicable. Attorney will not be required to submit copies of client court reports, or any other such reports, unless requested by the Coordinating Attorney.
- 11. Attorney shall submit to the Coordinating Attorney an electronic copy of each request for transcripts, request for appointment of expert witness, or any other motion, request, or stipulation that will require payment by the County, and shall submit such copies simultaneously with the filing of the original documents with the Court. Attorney shall also work to ensure that such requests are necessary for case preparation.
- 12. If at any time Attorney's case load becomes sufficiently burdensome to create an ineffective assistance of counsel issue or could cause the attorney to be in violation of the Rules of Professional Conduct, Attorney shall immediately notify the Coordinating Attorney and determine a proper course of action to remedy the situation.
- 13. Attorney is expected to provide coverage for other contract attorneys when necessary and when Attorney is available to provide coverage. When possible, the attorneys should attempt to trade coverage at the time coverage is procured. When a simultaneous trade is not possible, the attorney whose calendar was covered should make reasonable efforts to reciprocate coverage for the attorney who covered for him/her upon request.
- 14. If the Coordinating Attorney determines that the attorney who provided coverage made reasonable efforts to procure coverage from the attorney for whom he/she provided coverage and the other attorney is unwilling or unable to provide coverage within six months of the original coverage having been provided, the covering attorney shall be compensated \$250 by the attorney who was covered. This amount shall be deducted from the paycheck of the attorney whose calendar was covered and added to the paycheck of the covering attorney.
- 15. When Attorney will miss his/her regular court assignment due to trial, vacation, seminar, etc., Attorney shall arrange with another contract attorney to cover Attorney's court. If Attorney fails to procure coverage and does not appear at Attorney's court assignment, the sum of \$600 shall be deducted from Attorney's pay and paid to the attorney[s] who provided coverage for Attorney (if any is provided). The arrangement for court coverage shall be coordinated with the Coordinating Attorney.
- The term of this Agreement shall be from January 1, 2018 through December 31, 2019.
- 17. County agrees to pay Attorney the following amounts annually:

Basis for Amount	Amount
Child Welfare Representation	\$68,167

Mental Health Hearings	\$2,600
Additional Increase	\$798
Total	\$71,565

Payment shall be made to the Attorney in equal monthly installments of \$5,963.75 per month. The first installment is due before the end of January 2018 and a like sum on the last day of each month thereafter through December 31, 2019.

- 18. Attorney's compensation is based on the number of years Attorney has practiced. County agrees to periodically increase the compensation to Attorney up to a maximum of 30 years.
- 19. Attorney agrees to maintain professional malpractice insurance with limits of \$100,000 per person and an aggregate of \$300,000 and provide to County evidence of the insurance. In addition, Attorney agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold County harmless from all damage, loss, or injury Attorney may suffer or be held liable for as a result of Attorney's conduct.
- 20. Attorney agrees to abide by the rules of Professional Conduct of the American Bar Association, the Utah State Bar Association, and the laws of the State of Utah, including but not necessarily limited to the provisions of Chapter 32 of Title 77, Utah Code Ann. (1953, as amended).
- Attorney agrees to keep abreast of all current legal trends and to that end shall maintain sufficient continuing professional education credits during the period of this Agreement.
 - Attorney agrees to make reasonable efforts to attend at least 80% of the periodic public defender training/coordination meetings.
- 22. Throughout the term of this Agreement, Attorney agrees to maintain access to an office within Weber County where Attorney can meet with clients which Attorney serves under the terms of this Agreement. Attorney agrees to be available and accessible to clients reasonably in advance of any hearing or trial, to make reasonable efforts to visit clients who are incarcerated, to return telephone calls as soon as reasonably possible, and to otherwise be reasonably accessible to all clients.
- Attorney agrees to use his/her best efforts to avoid any conflicts of interest which would divide loyalty of Attorney to the client. The Parties, however, recognize that certain

- cases may arise where conflicts are of sufficient magnitude that the Attorney cannot represent the person charged. Conflicts of interest shall only be deemed to exist after a determination of the appointing Court.
- 24. Attorney will represent various clients that would typically be assigned to other contract attorneys when the court deems there is a conflict of interest preventing the other contract attorney from representing the client. Any such representation shall be at no additional cost to County, with such assignments being made under the direction of the Coordinating Attorney.
- 25. Nothing in this agreement shall prohibit Attorney from representing private clients so long as the representation of private clients does not interfere with or create a conflict of interest in the representation of clients appointed under this Agreement.
- 26. Unless the fee is waived by the court based upon the client's financial condition, Attorney agrees to assist County in the continued implementation of a fee recovery program whereby Defendants receiving assistance of appointed counsel shall repay to County a portion of the expense thereof as a matter of restitution, based upon a schedule approved by the Weber County Commission.
- This Agreement may not be assigned by Attorney. Attorney is an independent contractor and shall not act as an agent for County.
- 28. County has established an indigent expense fund and will continue to fund the expense fund for the term of this Agreement. The expense fund may be used by all attorneys representing indigent defendants in County. Appropriate expenses shall include, but shall not be limited to laboratory costs, transcripts, defense witness fees, and extraordinary investigator fees. Attorney will bear all other expenses in providing the services contemplated herein, including but not limited to, transportation, office, telephone, postage, copying, and secretarial costs. While ensuring that Attorney's client receives an adequate and reasonable defense, Attorney hereby agrees to use his/her best efforts to minimize the cost and expenses to be deducted from the fund.
- 29. Before any of the expense funds are expended, Attorney shall first consult with the Coordinating Attorney and then shall make application for approval of expenses in the form of a written motion to the trial judge and shall specify the reasons for the expense. Payment for any expense incurred by the Attorney and not previously approved by the Court, or in excess of that approved by the Court, shall be the sole responsibility of the Attorney. In the event the total court approved expenses exhaust the expense fund for the year, the Attorney shall apply in writing to the Weber County Clerk/Auditor for approval of additional funds.
- Attorney or County may terminate this Agreement without cause upon sixty days written notice to the other Party.

- 31. This Agreement may be terminated at any time for cause. Cause shall include but not be limited to a suspension or revocation of Attorney's license to practice law in the State of Utah, a breach of this Agreement, or behavior which brings disrepute to other contract attorneys or to County.
- 32. In the case of a breach or violation of a term of this Agreement, Attorney shall be given seven calendar days to cure the breach or violation. Failure of the Attorney to cure the breach or violation within the specified period shall result in termination of this Agreement. In the event this Agreement is terminated, the Parties agree that County may award this contract to other legal counsel and deduct the costs from the compensation identified in Paragraph 17 of this Agreement.
- Any notice required by this agreement shall be given in writing addressed to the following unless otherwise designated in writing.

FOR THE COUNTY:	FOR THE ATTORNEY:
Weber County Attorney 2380 Washington Blvd., Suite 230	
Ogden, UT 84401	

- 34. In the event this Agreement is terminated or is not renewed, Attorney agrees to cooperate with his successor including the filing of all necessary pleadings for withdrawal and to deliver all applicable files, information, and materials to the successor.
- This Agreement can be changed, modified, or amended only by written agreement of the Parties.
- 36. Attorney is an independent contractor and is responsible to pay any and all taxes and fees which may result from the compensation paid to Attorney pursuant to this Agreement.
- 37. This Agreement shall constitute the entire agreement between the Parties and any prior understanding or representation of any kind preceding the date of this Agreement shall not be binding upon either Party except to the extent incorporated in this Agreement.
- 38. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Utah.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the undersigned have affixed their respective signatures hereto the dates indicated below.

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF WEBER COUNTY

By_

Jim Harvey, Chair

Commissioner Ebert voted Commissioner Gibson voted Commissioner Harvey voted

ATTEST:

Ricky Hatch, CPA Weber County

ATTORNEY

Ammon Nelson Date

INDIGENT DEFENSE COORDINATOR

Michael D. Bouwhuis

Date 1/3/18

1/9/2018

AGREEMENT FOR INDIGENT DEFENSE ATTORNEY JUVENILE COURT

This Agreement is made effective the 1st day of January, 2018, by and between Weber County, a body politic of the State of Utah, hereinafter referred to as "County," and Jennifer Clark, hereinafter referred to as "Attorney." County and Attorney are sometimes referred to individually as "Party" and collectively as "Parties."

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, pursuant to Chapter 32 of Title 77, Utah Code Ann. (1953, as amended), County has the responsibility to provide legal counsel to every indigent person who faces the substantial probability of deprivation of his or her liberty; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Chapter 6 of Title 78A, Utah Code Ann. (1953, as amended) and other corresponding provisions and appellate court decisions, County has the obligation to provide legal counsel in abuse, neglect, and dependency proceedings; in termination of parental rights proceedings; and in delinquency and contempt proceedings; and

WHEREAS, Attorney is a member of the Utah State Bar Association in good standing and admitted to practice law before the courts of the State of Utah; and

WHEREAS, Attorney is willing to represent persons in the Second District Juvenile Court when appointed by the Court in accordance with paragraph one, two, and three below;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and promises contained hereafter, the Parties agree as follows:

- 1. <u>Delinquency Representation:</u> Attorney agrees to provide competent legal counsel to any minor defendant where the court appoints the Attorney pursuant to Utah Code § 78A-6-1111(1)(e), and the minor defendant has been charged with a delinquent act be it felony, misdemeanor, status offense, or certification proceeding. Attorney shall represent such minor defendants in all matters before the court including but not limited to juvenile court probation violations hearings, order to show cause hearings, detention hearings, and restitution hearings.
- Child Welfare Representation: Attorney agrees to represent and provide competent legal counsel to any parent or legal guardian where the following criteria have been met:
 - a. The parent or legal guardian is involved in an abuse, neglect, dependency, contempt, or termination of parental rights proceeding brought by the Utah Attorney General's Office for the Utah Division of Family Services pursuant to

- Utah Code § 78A-6-1111 et al;
- The court has found that the parent or legal guardian is indigent pursuant to the statutory indigency guidelines; and
- c. The court has appointed the Attorney to represent the parent or legal guardian.
- Private Termination Representation: Attorney agrees to represent and provide competent legal counsel to any parent where the following criteria have been met:
 - The parent is involved in a termination of parental rights proceeding that was brought by a private party;
 - The court has made a finding that failure to appoint counsel will result in a deprivation of due process;
 - The court has found that the parent is indigent pursuant to the statutory indigency guidelines; and
 - d. The court has appointed the Attorney to represent the parent.
- 4. In the event Attorney is appointed to represent a client as a result of the client's indigency, Attorney agrees to promptly notify the court of any changes with regard to the indigent status of client, which changes would affect the qualifying of the client for court-appointed counsel.
- Attorney agrees to be supervised by an attorney who has been hired by County to act as the coordinating attorney ("Coordinating Attorney") and to accept assignments from said Coordinating Attorney to cover specific court calendars and other hearings as necessary.
- Attorney will provide the Coordinating Attorney with caseload information on a monthly basis on a form approved by the Coordinating Attorney including information about the cases which have gone to trial.
- 7. Attorney will seek to identify potential conflicts or complaints that persons may have against Attorney and work diligently to avoid any complaints being lodged against Attorney. Attorney will immediately communicate to the Coordinating Attorney any complaints that may be lodged by anyone against Attorney and work diligently to resolve any such complaint.
- 8. Attorney will be responsible for scanning any paper files once they are closed and destroying the hard copy of the file. In the event that Attorney fails to scan closed paper files and destroy the hard copies, County may withhold the costs for doing so from Attorneys final paycheck. Attorney agrees to cooperate with Coordinating Attorney in transferring the digital copies of closed files to the Coordinating Attorney.
- 9. Attorney will assist Coordinating Attorney in the development of a list of court approved investigators and expert witnesses and make diligent efforts to utilize only those investigators and expert witnesses found on such list. If Attorney feels it necessary to utilize an expert witness or investigator who is not on the approved list, Attorney agrees

- to first consult with the Coordinating Attorney before making any such request of the Court.
- 10. Attorney shall submit to the Coordinating Attorney an electronic copy of each and every motion, memoranda, and appellate brief Attorney files. Attorney is not required to submit said copies prior to the respective due dates but shall submit copies to the Coordinating Attorney as soon thereafter as is practicable. Attorney will not be required to submit copies of client court reports, or any other such reports, unless requested by the Coordinating Attorney.
- 11. Attorney shall submit to the Coordinating Attorney an electronic copy of each request for transcripts, request for appointment of expert witness, or any other motion, request, or stipulation that will require payment by the County, and shall submit such copies simultaneously with the filing of the original documents with the Court. Attorney shall also work to ensure that such requests are necessary for case preparation.
- 12. If at any time Attorney's case load becomes sufficiently burdensome to create an ineffective assistance of counsel issue or could cause the attorney to be in violation of the Rules of Professional Conduct, Attorney shall immediately notify the Coordinating Attorney and determine a proper course of action to remedy the situation.
- 13. Attorney is expected to provide coverage for other contract attorneys when necessary and when Attorney is available to provide coverage. When possible, the attorneys should attempt to trade coverage at the time coverage is procured. When a simultaneous trade is not possible, the attorney whose calendar was covered should make reasonable efforts to reciprocate coverage for the attorney who covered for him/her upon request.
- 14. If the Coordinating Attorney determines that the attorney who provided coverage made reasonable efforts to procure coverage from the attorney for whom he/she provided coverage and the other attorney is unwilling or unable to provide coverage within six months of the original coverage having been provided, the covering attorney shall be compensated \$250 by the attorney who was covered. This amount shall be deducted from the paycheck of the attorney whose calendar was covered and added to the paycheck of the covering attorney.
- 15. When Attorney will miss his/her regular court assignment due to trial, vacation, seminar, etc., Attorney shall arrange with another contract attorney to cover Attorney's court. If Attorney fails to procure coverage and does not appear at Attorney's court assignment, the sum of \$600 shall be deducted from Attorney's pay and paid to the attorney[s] who provided coverage for Attorney (if any is provided). The arrangement for court coverage shall be coordinated with the Coordinating Attorney.
- 16. The term of this Agreement shall be from January 1, 2018 through December 31, 2019.
- 17. County agrees to pay Attorney the following amounts annually:

Basis for Amount	Amount
Child Welfare Representation	\$83,441
Delinquency Representation	\$36,309
Child Welfare Drug Court	\$3,900
Additional Increase	\$2,148
Total	\$125,798

Payment shall be made to the Attorney in equal monthly installments of \$10,483.16 per month. The first installment is due before the end of January 2018 and a like sum on the last day of each month thereafter through December 31, 2019.

- 18. Attorney's compensation is based on the number of years Attorney has practiced. County agrees to periodically increase the compensation to Attorney up to a maximum of 30 years.
- 19. Attorney agrees to maintain professional malpractice insurance with limits of \$100,000 per person and an aggregate of \$300,000 and provide to County evidence of the insurance. In addition, Attorney agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold County harmless from all damage, loss, or injury Attorney may suffer or be held liable for as a result of Attorney's conduct.
- Attorney agrees to abide by the rules of Professional Conduct of the American Bar Association, the Utah State Bar Association, and the laws of the State of Utah, including but not necessarily limited to the provisions of Chapter 32 of Title 77, Utah Code Ann. (1953, as amended).
- Attorney agrees to keep abreast of all current legal trends and to that end shall maintain sufficient continuing professional education credits during the period of this Agreement.
 - Attorney agrees to make reasonable efforts to attend at least 80% of the periodic public defender training/coordination meetings.
- 22. Throughout the term of this Agreement, Attorney agrees to maintain access to an office within Weber County where Attorney can meet with clients which Attorney serves under the terms of this Agreement. Attorney agrees to be available and accessible to clients reasonably in advance of any hearing or trial, to make reasonable efforts to visit clients

- who are incarcerated, to return telephone calls as soon as reasonably possible, and to otherwise be reasonably accessible to all clients.
- 23. Attorney agrees to use his/her best efforts to avoid any conflicts of interest which would divide loyalty of Attorney to the client. The Parties, however, recognize that certain cases may arise where conflicts are of sufficient magnitude that the Attorney cannot represent the person charged. Conflicts of interest shall only be deemed to exist after a determination of the appointing Court.
- 24. Attorney will represent various clients that would typically be assigned to other contract attorneys when the court deems there is a conflict of interest preventing the other contract attorney from representing the client. Any such representation shall be at no additional cost to County, with such assignments being made under the direction of the Coordinating Attorney.
- 25. Nothing in this agreement shall prohibit Attorney from representing private clients so long as the representation of private clients does not interfere with or create a conflict of interest in the representation of clients appointed under this Agreement.
- 26. Unless the fee is waived by the court based upon the client's financial condition, Attorney agrees to assist County in the continued implementation of a fee recovery program whereby Defendants receiving assistance of appointed counsel shall repay to County a portion of the expense thereof as a matter of restitution, based upon a schedule approved by the Weber County Commission.
- This Agreement may not be assigned by Attorney. Attorney is an independent contractor and shall not act as an agent for County.
- 28. County has established an indigent expense fund and will continue to fund the expense fund for the term of this Agreement. The expense fund may be used by all attorneys representing indigent defendants in County. Appropriate expenses shall include, but shall not be limited to laboratory costs, transcripts, defense witness fees, and extraordinary investigator fees. Attorney will bear all other expenses in providing the services contemplated herein, including but not limited to, transportation, office, telephone, postage, copying, and secretarial costs. While ensuring that Attorney's client receives an adequate and reasonable defense, Attorney hereby agrees to use his/her best efforts to minimize the cost and expenses to be deducted from the fund.
- 29. Before any of the expense funds are expended, Attorney shall first consult with the Coordinating Attorney and then shall make application for approval of expenses in the form of a written motion to the trial judge and shall specify the reasons for the expense. Payment for any expense incurred by the Attorney and not previously approved by the Court, or in excess of that approved by the Court, shall be the sole responsibility of the Attorney. In the event the total court approved expenses exhaust the expense fund for

- the year, the Attorney shall apply in writing to the Weber County Clerk/Auditor for approval of additional funds.
- Attorney or County may terminate this Agreement without cause upon sixty days written notice to the other Party.
- 31. This Agreement may be terminated at any time for cause. Cause shall include but not be limited to a suspension or revocation of Attorney's license to practice law in the State of Utah, a breach of this Agreement, or behavior which brings disrepute to other contract attorneys or to County.
- 32. In the case of a breach or violation of a term of this Agreement, Attorney shall be given seven calendar days to cure the breach or violation. Failure of the Attorney to cure the breach or violation within the specified period shall result in termination of this Agreement. In the event this Agreement is terminated, the Parties agree that County may award this contract to other legal counsel and deduct the costs from the compensation identified in Paragraph 17 of this Agreement.
- Any notice required by this agreement shall be given in writing addressed to the following unless otherwise designated in writing.

FOR THE COUNTY:

FOR THE ATTORNEY:

Weber County Attorney	- Jennifer Clark	
2380 Washington Blvd., Suite 230	-5829 S. 1050 E.	
Ogden, UT 84401	Ogden, UT 84401	

- 34. In the event this Agreement is terminated or is not renewed, Attorney agrees to cooperate with his successor including the filing of all necessary pleadings for withdrawal and to deliver all applicable files, information, and materials to the successor.
- This Agreement can be changed, modified, or amended only by written agreement of the Parties.
- 36. Attorney is an independent contractor and is responsible to pay any and all taxes and fees which may result from the compensation paid to Attorney pursuant to this Agreement.
- 37. This Agreement shall constitute the entire agreement between the Parties and any prior understanding or representation of any kind preceding the date of this Agreement shall not be binding upon either Party except to the extent incorporated in this Agreement.
- 38. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Utah.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the undersigned have affixed their respective signatures

hereto the dates indicated below.

	BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF WEBER COUNTY By Jim Harvey, Chair
	Commissioner Ebert voted Commissioner Gibson voted Commissioner Harvey voted
ATTEST: Rick Hatch, CPA Weber County	- 0
By Jennifer Clark Jan 3, 20 18	By Michael D. Bouwhuis Date